990 OMB No 1545-0047
Form . .

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 2012
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code

(except black lung benefit trust or private foundation) Open to Publlc

‘ Department of ihe Treasury > The organization may have to use a copy of this return to satisfy state reporting requirements Inspectioh - .
‘ A For the 2012 calendar year, or tax year beginning Jul 1 , 2012, and ending Jun 30 , 2 013
B Checkl apphcable C Name of organzaton THTIRTEEN D E ployer Ider  Numb
Address change Doing Business As 13-1945149
Name change Number and street (or P O box if mail 1s not delivered to street addr) Room/suite E Telephone number
Initial return 825 EIGHTH AVENUE, 14th FL (212) 560-1355
Terminated City, town or country State  ZIP code + 4
Amendedretun  INEW YORK NY 10019-7435 |G Grossrecepts $ 97,253,883.
Application pending F Name and address of principal officer H(a) Is this a group return for affihates? H Yes H No
CAROLINE CROEN 825 Eighth Ave  New York NY 10019 [™® Aealatiatesncuded> = [ [ves
I Taxexemptstatus X [501(c)3) | [501(0) ( )* (nsertno) | [4947(a))or | [527
J Website: » WWW.THIRTEEN.ORG H(c) Group exemption number ™
| K Form of organization IX lCorporahon I ITrusl | I Association [ I Other ™ | L Year of Formanon 1 962 M Siate of legal dormele  NY
[Part'l*" | Summary
\ 1 Brefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant achivities BE A_LEADING_PROVIDER OF_ EDUCATIONAL,
. INFORMATIONAL AND CULTURAL PRODUCTS AND SERVICES, USING ALL MEDIA, WHICH _ _ _ _ __ _ _
T g REFLECT AND RESPECT A _DIVERSE AND COMPLEX WORLD, SERVE THE UNDERSERVED,OFFER __ _ _ _
< E{  CULTURAL_ENRICHMENT, FACILITATE....._ (SEE_SCHEDULE O FOR_CONTINUATION) _ _________
o 31 2 Check this box > D if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets
Sl 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a). .. .. - 3 7
< ﬁ 4 Number of iIndependent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, ine 1b) 4 0
< .2 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2012 (Part V, hne 2a) . . 5 578
2 g 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . . . . . 6 61
2 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 . 7a -11,886.
a b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, hne 34 . 7b
4 Prior Year Current Year
=z 8 Contnbutions and grants (Part VIII, hne 1h) . - PN . .. 89,592,749. 83,716,764.
< 9 Program service revenue (Part VIl Iine 2g) . . . .. .. 14,771, 736. 5,758,962,
% 10 Investment income (Part Vill, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) . L. . . 196, 304. 4,519,340.
11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9c, 10c, and 11e) .. . 645,319. 1,251, 345.
12 Total revenue — add Iines 8 through 11 (musteguat-Rer=VimcolumnlAl lne 12) - 105,206,108. 95,246,411
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part 1X, cofumn RIEG—E lVED
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, colymn O
w| 15 Salanes, other compensation, employee be W!olumn (Ah lines 5 8 29,171,396. 28,115, 361.
= g 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, colu ,Iin (I.) 754,254, 676,431.
E % b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column}D), 6 -5}, 756. o T
‘ < 17 Other expenses (Part [X, column (A), lines 1 T2 lq UI .. 61,725,398. 47,749,458
i 3 18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A ST 91,651,048. 76,541,250.
} = .1 19 Revenue less expenses Subtract ine 18 from iine 12 . R Ce . 13,555, 060. 18,705,161.
| = g 8 Beginning of Current Year End of Year
| . 83| 20 Total assets (Part X, Ine 16) . . e Ce 138, 640,452. 0.
1 a ;15’ 21 Total iabilties (Part X, Ine26) . . . . ... .... Cee e . 11,327, 706. 0.
‘ %= 22 Net assets or fund balances Subtract line 21 from line 20 . .. . . 127,312,746. 0.
<. |[Part1l__|Signature Block
‘ ;;‘, Under penalties of penury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best ot my knowledge and behef, 1t 1s true, correct, and
i :-;, complete Declaration of preparer (olher than officer) 1s based on all intorrgation 2! which preparer has any knowledge
| > La/()-@\, lo5/07/14
slgn Stgnature ot officer Date
Here } CAROLINE CROEN DIRECTOR
Type or print name ang title
PranvType preparer s name Preparer's signature Date Check |_I mn PTIN
Pald N self-emptoyed
| Preparer [rmsneme *INON—Fald FPreparer
‘ Use Only Frm's address  © Firm's EIN ™
} Phone no
| May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) . . .. . . | | Yes IXTNO
1 BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. TEEA0101 05/09/13 Form 990 (2012)
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Form 990 (2012) THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 2
|Part Il | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part il . . . . . l:]

1 Bnefly describe the organization’s mission

2 Did the organization undertake any signiftcant program services during the year which were not hsted on the prior

Form 990 or 990-EZ? .. .. e .. - . D Yes E] No
If 'Yes,’ describe these new services on Schedule O
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? . D Yes El No

If 'Yes,” descnbe these changes on Schedule O

4 Describe the orgamization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations and section 4947(a)(1) trusts are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to
others, the total expenses, and revenue, if any, tor each program service reported

4 a (Code ) (Expenses $ 55,184,808. Includinggrantsof $ 0. )(Revenue $ 2,881,006.)
NATIONAL AND LOCAL PROGRAM SERVICES: TELEVISION PROGRAMMING OF THE HIGHEST

4 b (Code ) (Expenses $ 4,948,376. including grantsof  $ 0. )(Revenue $ 2,877,956.)
BROADCAST STATION: TECHNICAL OPERATIONS PROVIDES THE TRANSMISSION OF THIRTEEN’S

4 ¢ (Code ) (Expenses $ including grants of  $ ) (Revenue $ }

4 d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O)
{Expenses $ including grants of S ) (Revenue $ )
4 e Total program service expenses » 60,133,184.
BAA TEEA0102 08/08/12 Form 990 (2012)




Form 990 (2012) THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 3

[Part IV [Checklist of Required Schedules

1 Isthe orgamzallon described in section 501 (c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a pnvate foundatlon)” If 'Yes,” complete
Schedule A ..

2 |s the orgamization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)?

3 Didthe organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candldales
for public office? If 'Yes ' complete Schedule C, Part | e e

4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations Did the organization engage In Iobbylng activities, or have a section 501 (h) electlon
in effect during the tax year? If 'Yes ' complete Schedule C, Part Il .

5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? /f 'Yes,’ complete Schedule C, Part Il

6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the rnght
tg prowde adwce on the dlstnbutlon or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts" If 'Yes," complete Schedule D,
£ 12 S S

7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements tolfreserve open space the
environment, historic land areas or historic structures? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Partil . . . . . .

8 Did the orgamzation maintain collections of works of art, hlstoncal treasures, or other sumllar assets” If 'Yes,’
complete Schedule D, Part lli . . .

9 Dud the orgamization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account habilty, serve as a custodian
for amounts not listed in Part X, or provide credit counsellng, debt management credlt repair, or debt negotlatlon
services? If 'Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IV Ce e s

10 Dud the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restrlcted endowments
permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part V .

11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions i1s 'Yes', then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX,
or X as applicable

a Did the organization report an amount for land, bundmgs and equnpment in Part X, ine 107 If Yes comp/e!e Schedule
D, Part VI .

b Did the organization report an amount for investments — other secunties in Part X, Ilne 12 that 1s 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, ine 1672 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part VIl Ce e .

¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments — program related in Part X, hine 13 that 1s 5% or more of its total
assels reported In Part X line 162 If 'Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Vil [ . .

d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that 1s 5% or more of its total assets reponed
In Part X, ine 167 If 'Yes,' complete Schedule D, Part IX .. .

e Did the organization report an amount for other habilities in Part X, line 257 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule D, Part X . . .

f Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the orgamzation’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If 'Yes, complete Schedule D, Part X

12a Did the organization obtain separate, |ndependent audlted flnancual statements for the tax year? If 'Yes,' complete
Schedule D, Parts Xl, and XlI . . . ... . .. . L. L.,

b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If Yes and
if the organization answered 'No’ to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts X! and XlI is optional e

13 |s the organization a school descrbed in section 170(b)(1)(A)(n)? /f 'Yes,' complete Schedule E. . . . . . . ...

14 a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?. . .

b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,
business, investment, and program service activiies outside the United States or aggregate forengn investments valued
at $100,000 or more? If’ Yes,' complete Schedule F, Parts land IV . .

15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), hine 3, more than $5,000 of grants or assistance to any orgamzatlon
or entity located outside the United States? If 'Yes, complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV .

16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), ine 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or assistance to
individuals located outside the United States? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule F, Parts lil and IV .

17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,
column (A), ines 6 and 11e? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule G, Part | (see instructions) . . . . . . .. ..

18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 tota! of fundralsmg event gross Income and contributions on Part VI,
lines 1c and 8a? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule G, Part!l . . . . .. ... . ... L.

19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gamlng activities on Part ViII, ine 9a’7 If'Yes,’
complete Schedule G, Part ll e e e e e e e e e e e

20 a Did the organization operate one or more hospital faciiies? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule H e e e
b If 'Yes' to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return?

Yes | No

1 X

2 X

3 X
a4 X

5 X
6 X
7 X
8 X
9 X
10 X

11a] X

11b} X

Me X
11d| X

11e X
11f| X

12a X
12b| X

13 X
14a X
14b X
15 X
16 X
17 X

18 | X

19 X
20 X
20b

BAA TEEAO103 12/13/12

Form 990 (2012)



Form 990 (2012) THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 4
{Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Yes { No
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to governments and orgamzallons In the
United States on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If 'Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts land Il . . 21 X
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to individuals in the United States on Part
I1X, column (A), ine 2? If 'Yes, complete Schedule I, Parts | and lli . . 22 X

23 Did the organization answer 'Yes' to Part Vil, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organlzatlon s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees and hlghest compensaled employees7 If 'Yes,” complete ¥
ScheduleJ . . . . . S 23

24 a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond 1ssue with an outstanding pnnmpal amount of more than $100,000 as of
the last day of the year, and that was i1ssued after December 31, 20027 If 'Yes,' answer lines 24b through 24d and

complete Schedule K If No,’go to ne25 . . . . . . 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a lemporary penod exceptlon’7 ...... P 24b
c Did the orgamization maintain an escrow account other than a refundung escrow at any time dunng the year to defease

any tax-exemptbonds? . .. .. ... L L L e e . 24c¢
d Did the organization act as an 'on behalf of issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year” ...... .. 24d

25a Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) orgamza(mns Did the organmization engage in an excess benefit transaction wnh a
disquahfied person during the year? If 'Yes,” complete Schedule L. Part | .. 25a X

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organlzatlon s prlor Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If 'Yes,’ complete
Schedule L, Part | . .. . e 25b X

26 Was aloan to or by a current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, h|ghesl compensaied employee, or
disqualified person outstanding as of the end of the organization's tax year? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule L, Part Il. .. 26 X

27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% conlrolled entity or lamlly member
of any of these persons? If Yes complete Schedule L, Part Il .. 27 X

28 Was the organization a party lo a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions)

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule L, Partlv . . . . . . . . —2£;a ) X

b A tamity member of a current or former officer, drrector trustee, or key employee? If 'Yes,’ complete
Schedule L, Part IV . . . . .. L. 28b X

¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was an

officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule L, Partiv. ... .. . 28¢c| X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? I/f 'Yes," complete Schedule M e e 29 X
30 Didthe organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? If 'Yes,” complete Schedule M . . 30 X
31 Did the organization hquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operahons" If Yes,” complete Schedule N, Part! . . 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange d|spose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? /f Yes complete
Schedule N, Part Il . 32 X
33 Did the orgamzation own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organnzahon under Regulallons sections
301 7701-2 and 301 7701-3? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part! . . . ... .. . 33 X
34 Woas the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable enmy’7 If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule R, Parts i, v,
andV, lme1 . . .. . L. Lo e e e e . 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entty within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? . . . . . . e . | 35a X
b If 'Yes’ to ine 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled
entity within the meaning of sechon 512(b)(13)? If 'Yes,' complete Schedule R, Part V, ne2 . . .. 35b| X
36 Section 501(c)(3) orgamzatlons Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non- chantable related
organization? If 'Yes, complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . L . . 36 X
37 Dud the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization and that i1s
treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? /f 'Yes ' complete Schedule R, Part VI 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19'7
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O e e e . e . 38 X
BAA Form 990 (2012)

TEEAQ0104 08/08/12




Form 990 (2012) THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 5
[Part V | Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part V . . R D
Yes | No
1 a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096 Enter -0- if not applicable . . 1a 213 = ;
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a Enter -0- if not apphcable .. 1b 0
¢ Did the orgamization comply with backup wnhholdmg rules for reponable payments to vendors and reponable gaming -
(gambling) winnings to prize winners? . . . . . L Lo Lo . 1c
2 a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax State- :
ments, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return . . 2a 578f | .|
b If at least one I1s reported on line 2a, did the organization file ail required federal employment tax returns? . . . 2b| X
Note. If the sum of ines 1a and 2a 1s greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions) . _L:,., s
3 a Did the orgamization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during theyear? . . .. ... .. 3aj X
b If 'Yes’ has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If ‘No,’ provide an explanation in Schedule O. . . . e e e 3b| X

4 a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authonty over, a

financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, secunties account or other financial account)? . . R 4a
b If 'Yes, enter the name of the foreign country > 1 afie
See instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22 1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts fﬁ _LE:_
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year?. . Sa
b Did any taxable party notify the orgamization that it was or Is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? . . . . 5b X
c If 'Yes,  to ine 5a or 5b, did the organization hle Form 8886-T? . . . . .. o 5¢

6 a Does the organtzation have annual gross recetpts that are normally greater than $100 000, and did the orgamzatlon
solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as chantable contnbutions? e 6a X

b If 'Yes,” did the organization include with every sohcitation an express statement that such conlrlbullons or gifts were
not tax deductible? . 6b

7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c). e [

a Did the organization receive a paymem in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and . o | e

services provided to the payor? . . } 7a X
b If 'Yes,” did the organization notity the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . . 7b| X
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange or otherwise dlspose of tanglble personal propeny for which 1t was requwed to file
Form 82827 . . 7c X
d if 'Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . . .. | 7d| I R
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? . 7e X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? - 7t X
g If the organization recewved a contribution of quallfled intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899
as required? - . .. 749
h If the orgamzatlon received a contrlbutlon of cars, boats, awplanes or other vehicles, did the organlzanon file a
Form 1098-C? . 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting organizations. Did the - ”‘“zi 1

supporting organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsonng organlzallon have excess business
holdings at any time during the year? . . . e e

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the organization make any taxable distnbutions under section 49667
b Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? . . .. e e e e e
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter

a Imtiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, ine 12 . .. 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 890, Part VIll, ine 12, for public use of club facilittes . 10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter
a Gross income from members or shareholders. . . . . 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or received from them ) . .. 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non - exempt charitable trusts. Is the orgamzauon filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 . .o 12a
b If 'Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year . . | 12b|

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state?
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O

b Enter the amount of reserves the organization i1s required to maintain by the states in

which the organization 1s licensed to issue qualified health plans - . 13b
c Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . . . . . . - 13c
14a Dud the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? . L. . 14a X
b if 'Yes, has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If ‘No," provide an explanation in Schedule O L. 14b

BAA TEEA0105 08/08/12 Form 990 (2012)




Form 990 (2012) THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 6
[Part VI [Governance, Management and Disclosure For each 'Yes’ response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for

a 'No’ response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in

Schedule O See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part VI . . . .. m

Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No
1 a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year . 1a 7 '
It there are matenal differences in voting rights among members
of the governing body, or if the governing body delegated broad
authonity to an executive committee or sirmlar committee, explain in Schedule O
b Enter the number of voting members included in hne 1a, above, who are independent . 1b 0 ;
2 Dd any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a tam|ly relationship or a busmess relallonshlp with any other TR I P -
officer, dlrector trustee or key employee7 ....... . 2 X
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customanly performed by or under the direct supervrsron
of officers, directors or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . . 3 X
4 Dd the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents
since the prior Form 990 was filed?. . . . . . . . . ... ... L. L. . 4 X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? . . . . 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? . . - . 6 X
7 a Did the organization have members, stockholders or other persons who had the power to elect or appomt one or more
members of the governing body? . . . . . . .. 7al X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or other persons other than the governing body? .. 7b| X
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by "{g
the following 3
a The governing body? . . . .. e . P . . .. 8al X
b Each commitiee with authonty to act on behalf of the governing body? . . . . . . 8b| X
9 Is there any officer, director or trustee, or key employee hsted in Part VI, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization’s mailtng address? /f Yes provide the names and addresses in Schedule O 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Interna/ Revenue Code.)
Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affliates? . . . . .. . . - 10a X
b If 'Yes,' did the organization have wntten policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters affihates, and branches to ensure ther
operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? . . . .. . 10b
11 a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? . .. 11a] X
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990 .-
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If 'No,” go to line 13 . . P 12a| X
b Were officers, directors or trustees, and key employees requrred to disclose annually interests that could grve nse
to confhicts? e . 12b] X
¢ Did the organization regularly and con3|stently monitor and enforce comphiance with the pol|cy'7 " Yes describe in
Schedule O how thisisdone . . . .. ... . 12¢| X
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . . R e e 13 X
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? .. N . .. 14 X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent 5 A :
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substanttation of the deliberatton and dectsion? 3 B T
a The organization’s CEQ, Executive Director, or top management official 15a| X
b Other officers of key employees of the organization. . . . . . L. 15b| X
If 'Yes' to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (See instructions ) % :% % é% g
16 a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a Jomt venture or stmilar arrangement with a el sl t
taxable entity during the year" e e e e e e e e e 16al X
b If 'Yes,' did the orgamzation follow a wnitten policy or procedure requiring the orgamization to evaluate its g v&; §§ é“ i o
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and taken steps to safeguard the IEU S i
organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements? 16b

Section C. Disclosure
17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 1s required to be filed > See Form 990, Page 6, Line 17 (continued)

18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (501(c)(3)s only) available for public
tnspection Indicate how you make these avallable Check all that apply

El Own website B Another's website EI Upon request I:] Other (explain in Schedule O)
19 Descnbe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization makes its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial statements avatlable to
the publc during the tax year
20 State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the orgamzation
" CAROLINE CROEN 325 EIGHTH AVE, 14TH FL NEW YORK NY 10019-7435 {212) 560-1355

BAA TEEAQ106 08/08/12 Form 990 (2012)




Form 990 (2012) THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 7

| Part Vil [Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part VII. .. . R |_|

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees —

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be Iisted Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year

® List all of the orgamzation’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation Enter -0- 1in columns (D), {E), and (F) v no compensation was paid

® List all of the organization’s current key employees, If any See instructions for definition of 'key employee ’

® |ist the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations

® List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the orgarization and any related organizations

® List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or truslee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

List persons in the following order individual trustees or directors, institutional trustees, officers, key employees, highest compensated
employees, and former such persons

H Check this box If nerther the organization nor any related orgamzation compensated any current officer, director, or trustee

(C)
(B) Position (do not check more than (D) (E) (F)
Nomeana T e | "ol snda et | crbhen | comiion | amohe
vl emeTorzTEITT| Moy | Wl | omme
forrelated | @ 2 g 5 ‘(’1; Xy 3 organizalion
"o |BEIS]F12|52|® orgamzanons
wme | =| 2l 2] 3
ling) 73 g @ 3
3
_()_NEAL_SHAPIRO_ _ __ _ _ __ | _——
CHAIRMAN 40.00] X X 0. 508,409. 27,047.
_(2 CAROLINE CROEN _ _ _ __ | —
DIRECTOR 40.00] X X 0. 237,215. 17,377.
_(©)_ROBERT FEINBERG _ | -
DIRECTOR 40.00] X X 0. 266,855, 19,026.
_{4)_LISA MANTONE_ _ _ _ _ __ _ | o
DIRECTOR 40.00] X X 0. 305,617. 19,489.
_(5) STEPHEN SEGALLER _ | ———
DIRECTOR 40.001 X X 0. 300, 380. 14,558.
_(6) CHARLENE SHAPIRO _ _ _ _ | —
DIRECTOR 40.004 X X 0. 234,827. 8,662.
_()_CAROLE WACEY_ _ ______ | -
DIRECTOR 40.00| X X 0. 9,431. 0.
_® ROSLYN DAVIS _ _____ _ | 40.00
DIRECTOR & GENERAL MGR X 215,595. 0. 12,993.
_(9) FRANK PESCE__ ____ __ _ | -
TREASURER (thru 9/13/12)(40.00 X 0. 123,894. 18,927.
(10) SAMANTHA_GREEN _ __ __ _ | ————
TREASURER (As of 9/14/12)]140.00 X 0. 88,801. 2,973.
Q01)_LOREN KITTILSEN _ __ _ _ | —
SECRETARY (thru 3/4/13) {40.00 X 0. 49,431. 5,045.
(12)_BLANCHE ROBERTSON __ _ _ | —
SECRETARY (As of 3/5/13)140.00 X 0. 76,465. 23,706.
{13) DAVID HORN _ _ ________40.00
EXEC PRODUCER X 294, 389. 0. 27,489.
(14)_FRED_KAUFMAN _ _ ___ __ |40.00
EXEC PRODUCER X 192,637. 0. 25,100.

BAA TEEA0107 1211712 Form 990 (2012)




Form 990 (2012) THIRTEEN
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Page 8

| Part VII [Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (cont)

(B) ©)
P
(A) Ar\]/erage t(>d° nollcheglflrlrll%?e lhgn r?ne (D) (E) (F)
ours 0x, unless person 1s both an
Name and iile vll)eeék ofhicer and a director/trustee) comsgr?;):naot::ehom com?aiﬁg:talghehom amgﬁmnoallz?her
wiay RS E[Q(F [3a]S| Woaet | evmes | coppensaton
hours” 1o 2 g =3 e o= = organization
for 5 o] =| e (3D 12 | @ and related
related % B o (8 o] organizations
organiza R H &© Foy <
- tions gl & S é M
below & 2 w© &
dotted 2 ‘(._C. 7
line) o 2
e
{15)_WILLIAM BAKER _ _ ___________/| 40.00
PRESIDENT EMERITUS X 361,649. 0. 4,230.
(16)_ARNOLD LABATON _ ___________| 40.00
EXEC PRODUCER X 234, 320. 0. 12,570.
07)_ROBERT ABERNETHY _ _________ | 40 00
EXEC EDITOR/HOST X 243,322. 0. 20,130.
08)_SUSAN LACY _ _ _ _ _ ___________ 4000
EXEC PRODUCER X 238,679. 0. 15,290.
{19)_SANDRA SHEPPARD__ _ _ _ _______ | 4000
EXEC PRODUCER X 180,266. 0. 6,448.
Lo o ____ ——
ey L ____ o
ey ____ o
e ___] e
ey o ___ o
e L ____] ——
1b Sub-total ) . .. " 11,960,857.] 2,201,325. 281,060.
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VIl, Section A >
d Total (add lines 1b and 1c) - . - . .. 1,960,857. 2,201,325. 281, 060.
2 Total number of individuals (including but not imited to those lIisted above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable compensation
from the organization ® 8
| Yes | No
i 3 Dud the organization list any tormer officer, director or trustee, key employee or hlghest compensated employee T s
| on hne 1a? If 'Yes,’ complete Schedule J for such indvidual . . .. ... . L. ..., 3 X
‘ 4 For any individual histed on line 1a, i1s the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from ”%%?}i‘- v, S
‘ the organization and related organlzanons greater than $150,0007? If Yes complete Schedule J for ¥ PP PO
suchindividual . - . .. Lo e 4 X
5 Did any person listed on hne 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual B S
for services rendered 1o the organization? /f 'Yes ' complete Schedule J for suchperson . . . . . e e .1 S X
‘ Section B. Independent Contractors
; 1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
| compensation from the orgamization Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year
(A) (8) (C)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
KUNHARDT PRCDUCTIONS, INC. 48 WHEELER AVENUE 3RD FLOOR PLEASANTVILLE NY 10570 |PROGRAM PRODUCTION 2,824,367.
ISA ADVERTISING 845 THIRD AVENUE, 6TH FLOOR NEW YORK NY 10022 |CRERTIVE SERVICE & PRODLCTICH AGINCY 2,311,197,
CARNIVAL Fil¥ & TELIVISTON C/0 30 ROCKEFELLER PLAZA NEW YORK NY 10112 |CO-PRODUCTION 1,800,000.
PVER COMES 230DUCTIONS ThC 11777 SAN VICENTE BVLD LOS ANGELES CA 90049 [PROGRAM PRODUCTION 783,492.
JANKLOW & ASHLEY LLP 445 PARK AVENUE NEW YORK NY 10022 IPROGRAM PRODUCTION 690, 833.
2 Tolal number of independent contractors (including but not imited to those hsted above) who received more than "

% IS kY

$100,000 in compensation from the organization ™

BAA

103 _
TEEAD108 01/24/13
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Form 990 (2012) THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 9
Part VIl | Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part VIl .. . .. D
(A) (B) ©) (D)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue
exempt business excluded from tax
I function revenue under sections
" N revenue 512,513, or 514
:z: E 1a Federated campaigns . 1a
g§ b Membership dues 1b/ 29,111,709, ) o
£ < c Fundraising events 1c] 3,203,606, : : '
[T
G 5| d Related organizations . . . . . 1d)13,411,406.
%’ § e Government grants (contributions) . . 1e/14,913,080. .
S o P -
'é St Al other contributions, gifts, grants, and i >
- .
& O similar amounts not included above . 11123,076,963. ¥ et
> % g Noncash contributions included inIns 1a-1f ~ § N ;§ ?,’i; i & %(% 1
O s & gt
u.l h Total. Add hnes 1a-1f . .. . . . ..... L 83 716 764. R
% Business Code i 1 %%5}’ T
@| 22 Service and License Fees[511110 3,356,726. 3,356,726,
a b PROGRAM ROYALTIES _ _ _ _ 900099 2,402,236.] 2,402,236.
Z| ¢
el . ___
w3 d
T
sl ¢°_
=] f All other program service revenue
2-| g Total. Add ines 2a-2f *| 5,758,962. Fd Rt o
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest and
other similar amounts) . . . . . > 4,524,110, 0. 0. 4,524,110
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds >
5 Royaltes. - > 0. 0. 0. 0.
{1} Real (1) Personat ‘ 3 ) 8. s %’:% g % i;,
6a Gross rents 154,709. . % - LS
b Less rental expenses 60,268. ‘;*3*
¢ Rental income or (loss) 94,441 .
d Net rental income or (loss) . e 94,441 .
it N
7 a Gross amount from sales of ) Securites (1) Other 31
assets other than inventory |1, 522, 456. 11,000. "\{;”i .
$hyit K
b Less cost or other basis s
and sales expenses . 1,538,226. S
¢ Gan or (loss) -15,770Q0. 11,000. :
d Netgannor(loss) . . ..... > -4, 770
wi| 8a Gross income from fundraising events i
2 (notincluding s 3,203,606, . Py
[} K
= of contributions reported on line 1c) % e . ¢ & .
E See Part IV, line 18 a 408, 978. %% {%g\ . %%ov ‘3{%
2 % & L T4
=| b Less drect expenses b 408,978 . |+ g .. '{ Y Rap g
2| ¢ Netincome or (loss) from fundraising events s 0.] = *gadbt.
9a Gross income from gaming activities ;2 e \'{;&9 i
See Part IV, line 19. . . a £ : J% :
b Less direct expenses b L ‘ L
¢ Net income or (loss) from gaming activities >
10a Gross sales of mventory, less returns s e FEdts - R
and allowances . a .o - g{%ﬁ oF IEE
b Less cost of goods sold b o% i L Rkt 3 %% §
¢ Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory . >
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code S 1 N R T LI TN <)
11a MANAGEMENT SERVICE FEES |541610 12,000. 0. 0. 12,000.
b REIMBURSEMENTS 900099 833,095, 0. 0. 833,095.
€ MISCELLANEQUS _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 900099 260,946. 0. 0 260, 946.
d All other revenue . 50,863. 0. 0. 50,863.
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d *| 1,156,904, kS o sk
12 Total revenue. See instructions . > 95,246,411 5,758,962. -11,886 5,782,571.
BAA TEEAQ109 1217112

Form 980 (2012)



Form 990 (2012) THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 10
[Part IX | Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns_All other organizations must complete column (A)

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part IX .. .. e e e I ]
D Huch ts reported on lines 6b (A) (B) (© (D)
0 not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total expenses Program service Management and Fundraising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part Vil expenses general expenses expenses

1 Grants and other assistance to governments
and organizations in the United States See
Part IV, ine 21 . .

o Grants and other assistance to |nd|V|duals n
the United States See Part IV, line 22 . .

3 Grants and other assistance to governments, -
organizations, and individuals outside the
United States See Part IV, lines 15 and 16

4 Benefits pad to or for members . . . . ) NCECIEE R
5 Compensation of current officers, dlrectors
trustees, and key employees . . . . . . 1,144,871. 812,4095. 0. 332,376.

6 Compensation not included above, to
disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)) and persons descnbed
In section 4958(c)(3)(B) . .

Other salaries and wages B 22,162,550. 16,058,8889. 534,648. 5,569,013.

Pension plan accruais and coniributions
(include section 401(k) and section 403(b)

I

employer contributions) . 1,049,083. 905, 362. 16,643. 127,078.

9 Other employee benefits .. e 2,025,149. 1,321,050. 38, 796. 665,303.
10 Payroll taxes - . 1,733,708. 1,267,610. 43,645. 422,453.
11 Fees for services (non-employees)

a Management . 2,435,819. 682,224. 0. 1,753,595.

blLegal . . .. . 3,759. 1,359. 0. 2,400.

¢ Accounting

d Lobbying N - .

e Professional fundraising services See Part IV, ine 17 . 676,431, RE IS ﬁ%%«%‘ 676,431.

f Investment management fees
g Other (If line 11g amt exceeds 10% of line 25, coI-

umn (A) amt, hsthine 11g expenseson Sch Q) . 90,794. 59,438. 2,570. 28,786.
12 Advertising and promotion . . . 437,143. 323,151. 91,233. 22,759.
13 Office expenses . - 5,832,373, 2,316,520. 3,742. 3,512,111.
14 Information technology
15 Royalies . . . . 551,167. 551,167. 0. 0.
16 Occupancy < 4,318,266. 3,516,323. 18,511 . 783,432,
17 Travel - - - 1,589,793. 1,378,094. 9,872. 201,827.

18 Payments of travel or entertainment
expenses for any federal, state, or local
public officials . . . . ... ..

19 Conferences, conventions, and meetmgs 62,889. 54,195, 0. 8,694,
20 Interest A . . 21,972. 1,659. 20,244. 69.
21 Payments to affiliates . e
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization. . 2,983,741. 2,552,618. 94,632. 336,491.
23 Insurance . . . - 260,330. 195,961. 1,491. 62,878.
24 Other expenses ltemize expenses not . IR IE 2% foow EEZETTY e 1 s |
covered above (List muscellaneous expenses . } % ; I S it A0 Sa . e I
in hne 24e If ine 24e amount exceeds 10% = % g% i,u R A ’
of line 25, column (A) amount, list ine 24e L3 E| iy pRA N B £
expenses on Schedule O ) . .. ok % G Lh B : ‘ R
2 DUES_& PBS ASSESSMENTS _ _ _ _ 9,620,975. 9,619,475, 0. 1,500.
b PROGRAM_PRODUCTION/ACQUISITION 18,597,564. 18,372,297. 0. 225,267.
¢ MISCELLANEOUS _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ 717,576. 0. 344,283. 373,293.
d FULFILLMENT 225,297, 143,297, 0. 82,000.
e All other expenses Ce e
25 Total functional expenses Add lines 1 through 24e 76,541,250. 60,133,184. 1,220,310. 15,187,756.

26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if
the orgamzation reported in column (B)
joint costs from a combined educational
campaign and fundraising solicitation
Check here » D if following
SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

BAA TEEAO110 12/18/12 Form 990 (2012)




Form 990 (2012) THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 11

[Part X [Balance Sheet

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part X . C. . . . D
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash — non-interest-bearing . . R e . 47,107.| 1
2 Savings and temporary cash investments - . . .. .. 1,909,981.( 2
3 Pledges and grants recevable, net e . .. .. 144,187.] 3
4 Accountsrecewvable,net . . .. .. ... . e . 2,706,074.} 4
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,
trustees, key employees, and hlghest compensated employees Complete . .. - - <
Part Il of Schedule L - 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under e - e R &%l I
section 4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c}(3)(B), and contnbuting 3.t R .. o1 i e
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees e e e EOTE Y B S S
beneficiary organizations (see instructions) Complete Part |l of Schedule L .. 6
é 7 Notes andloansrecewvable,net . . . .. ... ..., . 7
2 8 Inventones for sale or use . . . S 8
¢| 9 Prepad expenses and deferred charges . . . . . . . . e e e 9,314,174.] 9
10a Land, builldings, and equipment cost or other baS|s . 5 & .
Complete Part VI of Schedule D . . 10a S k .
b Less accumulated depreciation . R 10b 8,4 03 180.] 10c
11 Investments — publicly traded securtttes . . . . . . . 7,140,012, 1
12 Invesiments — other securities See Part IV, line 11 . . .o . 6,490,875, | 12
13 Investments — program-related See Part IV, hne 11 . . .. . 13
14 Intangible assets . e .. 14
15 Other assets See Part 1V, ine 11 . . S . .. 102,484,862.]15 0.
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) e e . 138,640,452.]16 0.
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses - coe - . 11,327,706.117 0.
18 Grants payable e S . . 18
19 Deferred revenue . e . .. . 0.| 19
L | 20 Tax-exempt bond habilities . . . R 20
'A 21 Escrow or cuslodial account hability Complete Part IV of Schedule D . 21
|B 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees, %” i [ I Yo
L key employees, highest compensated employees and dlsqualllled persons RERS R of R o ¥
LA Complete Part Il of Schedule L . . . 22
:5 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties . . . . . 23
S| 24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties . . . . . . 24
25 Other habibties (including federal iIncome tax, payables to related third parties,
and other habiities not included on lines 17-24) Complete Part X of Schedule D . 25
26 Total habilities. Add lines 17 through25 . . . . . 11,327,706.] 26 0
N Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here > mand complete R ”’g % B Sl el :
T lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34. Y éig . * %, }}"“ . H
‘s\ 27 Unrestncted net assets - R - .. . .. P c e . 96,699,100.|27 0.
E 28 Temporanly restricted netassets . . . . . Ce . e e e .. 26,750,929.| 28 0
S| 29 Permanently restricted netassets . . . ... ... R 3,862,717, 29 0.
8 Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here * D A {i{ ’ 4 f, ﬁ"; !
£ and complete lines 30 through 34. i o %2 C . : tl E !
g 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds . . . . Ce . . 30
2 31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or fand, building, or equipment fund . e e e 31
L | 32 Retaned earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds. . . . . 32
g 33 Total net assets or fund balances . . . . 127,312,746.]33 0.
S| 34 Total labiities and net assets/fund balances . . - S e : 138,640,452.134 0.
BAA Form 990 (2012)

TEEAOt11 01/03/13



Form 990 (2012) THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 12

Part XI [Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part X1 . .

M

1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A}, hne 12) . 1 95,246,411 .
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 76,541,250.
3 Revenue less expenses Subtract kne 2 from line 1 - 3 18,705,161,
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, ine 33, column (A)). . 4 127,312,746.
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments S 3,443.
6 Donated services and use of facilities . 6
7 Investment expenses 7
8 Pror period adjustments 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O) .. . 91 -146,021,350.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year Combme hnes 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, I|ne 33,
column (B))- S L Do e 10 0.
| Part Xil | Financial Statements and Reportmg
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part XI| . D
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990 DCash EAccruaI DOlher A S
It the orgamzation changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked 'Other,’ explain
tn Schedule O
2 a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? . 2a X
If '"Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both
D Separate basis DConsolldated basis DBolh consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2b| X
If "Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate
basis, consolidated basis, or both
Separate basis EConsohdaled basis DBolh consoldated and separate basis
c If 'Yes' to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c| X
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain
in Schedule O
3 a As a result of a federal award, was the orgamzanon requwed to undergo an audn or audits as set forth in the Slngle
Audit Act and OMB Circular A-133? . 3a|] X
b If 'Yes,' did the orgarization undergo the required audit or audits? |f the organization did not undergo the requued audlt
or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits . 3b| X

BAA

TEEAO112  08/09/11

Form 990 (2012)



SCHEDULE A

(Form 990 or 990-E2)

Department of the Treasury

Interna! Revenue Service

Public Charity Status and Public Support

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section

» Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. > See separate instructions.

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.

OMB No 1545-0047

2012

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the orgamization

THIRTEEN

Employer identification number

13-1945149

[Part| [Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part ) See instructions

The organization 1s not a private foundation because itis (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box )
1 A church, convention of churches or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

— 170(b)(1)(A)(iv).

2 A school descnbed in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i1). (Attach Schedule E )

3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization descrnibed in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).
4 u A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's
name, city, and state

5 D An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit descrnibed In section

(Complete Part I1)

6 A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

\'
1

A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v1). (Complete Part It )
9 An organization that normally recetves (1) more than 33-1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from activities

related to Its exempt functions — subject to certain exce
unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax)
(Complete Part lll')

10 H An orgamization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety See section 509(a)(4).

11

tions, and (2) no more than 33-1/3% of its sy
rom businesses acquired by the organization af

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public descrnibed
in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il )

Pport from gross investment income and
rJune 30,1975 See section 509(a)(2).

An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or carry out the purposes of one or more publicly

supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 508(a)(2) See section 509(a)(3). Check the box that descrnibes the type of
supporting organization and complete lines 11e through 11h

c D Type lll — Functionally integrated

e D By checking this box, | certify that the organization 1s not controlled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified persons
other than foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations descrbed in section 509(a)(1) or

a DType |

section 508(a)(2)

b DType l

d [

Type Il — Non-functionally integrated

t If the organization recelved a wrltten determlnatlon from the IRS that 1sa Type |, Type II or Type n suppomng organlzatlon
check this box . ..
g Since August 17, 2006, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
Yes | No
(i) A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described Iin (||) and (m) K
below, the governing body of the supported organization? . 119 (i)
(i) A family member of a person described in (1) above? 11g (i)
(ili) A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (1) or (n) above? 11g (ini)
h Provide the following information about the supported orgamzation(s)
(1) Name of supported (m EIN (m) Type of organization () Is the (v) Did you notify (w) is the (vn} Amount of monetary
organization (described on lines 1-9 organization in the organization in orgamzalion in support
above or IRC section column (1) hsted in | calumn (1) of your column (1)
(see instructions)) your governing support? organized in the
document? Us-?
Yes No Yes No Yes No
(A)
(B)
(9]
(D)
(E)
3 P A 7.0
zs§§§,< ? ‘ fgé S
Total 7 L 5 1

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

TEEAQ401 08/09/12

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012 THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 2
[Part I TSupport Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A){(vi)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or If the organization failed to qualify under Part lll 1f the
organization fails to qualify under the tests fisted below please complete Part Ill')

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year 1 2012
beginning in) > (a) 2008 (b) 2009 (c) 2010 (d) 2011 (e) 20 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membershlp fees received {Do not
include any 'unusual grants ) - - 131,661,283 |110,795,564.]|95,427,516.89,592,749.(|83,716,764.(511,193,876.
2 Taxrevenues levied for the
organization's benefit and
either paid to or expended
on Iits behalt

3 The value of services or
faciities furnished by a
governmental unit to the
organization without charge

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 131,661,283.1110,795,564.(95,427,516.89,592,749.183,716,764.]511,193,876.
5 The portion of total %&?:ﬁ 54 %‘? FE | IR B REL ’
contributions by each person &gﬂz 5 T ST N R .
(other than a governmental : ¢ :
unit or publicly supported 1) T wy”
organization) included on line 1 §M§ i A t i
that exceeds 2% of the amount 1 % e I RIS ;
shown on line 11, column {f) . . | é%@%ga,:fa,?% sy PR g
c 24t A2T 5., 7 | 2% s N ’
6 Public support. Subtract ine 5 ? gé% 34 ‘fi’f%%? i fféﬁ i %:; i’ N °
from line 4 H “3‘;3%5??‘5:“?%2 § .‘%:’?%‘%”3“?%% < c L ol (1511,193,876.
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year
beginning in) > (a) 2008 (b) 2009 (c) 2010 (d) 2011 (e) 2012 (f) Total

7 Amounts fromine4 . . . 131,661,283 |110,795,564.195,427,516.|89,592,749.(83,716,764.(511,193,876.

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received
on securities loans, rents,
royalties and income from
simiar sources . . - 116,580,454.18,989,597.13,276,815.13,319,704.}7,081,055.{39,247,625.

9 Netincome from unrelated
business activities, whether or
not the business is regularly
carried on

10 Other income Do not include
gain or loss from the sale of
caprtal assets (Explain in

PartIlv) . .- - 17,988, 9 1.17,037,224.16,991,736.]12,255, 795 3,680,535.[37,954,211.
BEHE AR R LR ; .
11 Total support Add lines 7 AN O & 33 ﬁ%?{gf«» o 3 4 N By
through 10 “v ‘ﬁz R SN N 0 B STON N L 588,395,712.
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc (see instructions) . | 12
13 First five years. If the Form 990 1s for the orgamzallon s flrst second, third, lourth or fifth tax year as a section 501 (c)( )
organization, check this box and stophere . . . . .. ... e e e > D
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2012 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) . .. 14 86.88 %
15 Public support percentage from 2011 Schedule A, Part II, ine 14 . ... 15 84.02 %

16a 33-1/3% support test — 2012. If the orgamization did not check the box on line 13, and the line 14 1s 33-1/3% or more, check thls box
and stop here. The organization quahfies as a publicly supported organtzation . >

b 33-1/3% support test — 2011. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and hne 151s 33-1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The orgamzation gqualifies as a publicly supported organization . -

17 a 10%-tacts-and-circumstances test — 2012, If the organization did not check a box on ine 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 1s 10%
or more, and If the organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances’ test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part IV how
the organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances’ test The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton . ... . .»

b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test — 2011. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and Iine 151s 10%
or more, and If the organizatton meets the 'facts-and-circumstances’ test, check this box and stop here Explam in Part IV how the
organization meets the 'facts-and-circumstances' test The organization qualmes as a publicly supported organization . . >

18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions . >
BAA

1 O O

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012 THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 3
[Part lll_|Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 9 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualfy under Part Il If the organization fails
to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part i )

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal yr beginning tn) > (a) 2008 (b) 2009 (c) 2010 (d) 2011 (e) 2012 (f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contrnibutions
and membersh|p fees
received (Do not include
any 'unusual grants )

2 Gross receipts from admis-
sions, merchandise sold or
services performed, or facilities
furnished n any activity that 1s
related to the organization’s
tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross recepts from activities
that are not an unrelated trade
or bustness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and
either paid to or expended on
its behalf

5 The value of serwces or
facilities furnished by a
governmental unit to the
organization without charge.

6 Total Add lines 1 through 5

7 a Amounts included on lines 1,
2, and 3 received from
disqualfied persons

b Amounts included on lines 2
and 3 received from other than
disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or
1% of the amount on line 13
for the year .

¢ Add lines 7a and 7b

8 Public support (Subtract line Bewl, ] E3E ] %g | i § i &
7c fromline 6 ) RO 5 3;%‘ T W
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year {or fiscal yr beginning in) > (a) 2008 (b) 2009 (c) 2010 (d) 2011 (e) 2012 () Total

9 Amounts from line 6

10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received
on securities loans, rents,
royalties and income from
similar sources

b Unrelated business laxable

income (less section 511
taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

¢ Add lines 10a and 10b

11 Net income from unrelated business
actrvities not included in ine 10b,
whether or not the business I1s
regularly carried on

12 Otherincome Do not |nc|ude

gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explain in
Part IV )

13 Total support (Addins9, 10c, 11, and 12)
14 First five years. If the Form 990 1s for the organlzatlon s flrst second thlrd founh or flﬂh tax year asa secnon 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stop here ~. . . .. oo o O T0 0 N |_|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2012 (line 8, column (f) divided by ine 13, column (f)) . . . . . 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2011 Schedule A, Part Ill, ine 15 e e e e . [ 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2012 (hne 10c, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) . . . . . . . . .. 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2011 Schedule A, Partill, line 17 . . 18 %
1932 33-1/3% support tests — 2012. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and hne 15 1s more than 33-1/3%, and line 17
1s not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization quallfles as a publicly supported organtzation . > D
b 33-1/3% support tests — 2011. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or ine 19a, and line 16 1s more than 33-1/3%, and
line 18 1s not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported orgamization . . N S
20 Pnivate foundation. If the organization did not check a box on hine 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions . N %

BAA TEEAD403  08/09/12 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 201
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012 THIRTEEN

13-1945149 Page 4

| Part IV | Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10,
Part Il, ine 17a or 17b; and Part lll, ine 12 Also complete this part for any additional information

(See instructions)

See Schedule A (Form 990 or 990EZ) - Part IV - Supplemental Information (Continuation Sheet)

BAA

TEEA0404 08/10/12

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012




. . . . OMB No 1545 0047
SCHEDULE C Political Campaign and Lobbying Activities
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 201 2
For Organizations Exempt From Income Tax Under section 501(c) and section 527
Department of the Treasus > Complete if the organization is described below. > Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ Open to Public
I B o e sary > See separate instructions. Inspection

If the organization answered 'Yes,’ to Form 990, Part IV, line 3, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 46 (Political Campaign Activities), then
® Section 501(c)(3) organizations Complete Parts I-A and B Do not complete Part I-C
® Section 501(c) (other than section 501(c)(3)) orgamzations Complete Parts I-A and C below Do not complete Part I-B
® Section 527 organizations Complete Part I-A only
If the organization answered ’Yes,' to Form 990, Part IV, line 4, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 47 (Lobbying Activities), then
® Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)) Complete Part [I-A Do not complete Part li-B

® Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have NOT filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)) Complete Part II-B Do not complete
Part II-A

If the organization answered 'Yes,’ to Form 990, Part IV, line 5 (Proxy Tax) or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 35a (Proxy Tax), then
® Section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) organizations Complete Part Il

Name of organization Employer identification number

THIRTEEN 13-1945149
| Part I-A |Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c) or is a section 527 organization.

1 Provide a description of the organization’s direct and indirect political campaign activities in Part IV
2 Political expenditures - . - S e e .. . L]

3 Volunteer hours R . e . ..
|Part I-B [Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3).

1 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by the orgamzation under section 4955 . >3

2 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by orgamzation managers under section 4955 . .. > S

3 Il the orgamization incurred a section 4955 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year? - . Dyes DNO
4 a Was a correction made? . ... e .. DYes DNO

b If 'Yes, descnbe in Part IV
Part I-C |Comp|ete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c) , except section 501(c)(3).

1 Enter the amount directly expended by the fiing orgamzation for section 527 exempt function activities > S
2 Enter the amount of the filng organization's funds contributed to other organizations for section 527 exempt
function activities . . . [ > S
3 Total exempt function expenditures Add lines 1 and 2 Enter here and on Form 1120-POL,
line 17b B . . . C e e e e e e e .. .. L
Did the filing organization file Form 1120-POL for this year? . . . . DYes DNo

Enter the names, addresses and employer identification number (EIN) of all section 527 political orgarizations to which the filing
organization made payments For each organization listed, enter the amount paid from the filing orgamzation's funds Also enter the
amount of political contribulions recetved that were promptly and directly delivered to a separate political organization, such as a separate
segregated fund or a political action committee (PAC) If additional space I1s needed, provide information in Part IV

(a) Name (b) Address (c)EIN (d) Amount paid from hiling (e) Amount of pohtical
organization s funds It contributions receved and
none, enter-0- promptly and direcily

delvered to a separate
political orgarmzation I
none, enter -0

L e

o e

) J S e ——

. N A

) et

[ T e T p———

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-E2Z) 2012

TEEA3201 12/7112




Schedule C (Form 990 or 890-E7) 2012y TR TEEN 13-1945149 Page 2

[Part II-A |Complet5eoi1f(thh)<)e organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and filed Form 5768 (election under
section .

A Check » I:] if the filing organization belongs to an affilated group (and list in Part IV each affiliated group member's name,
address, EIN, expenses, and share of excess lobbying expenditures)
B Check » D if the filing organization checked box A and 'limited control’ provisions apply

Limits on Lobbying Expenditures (a) Filing (b) Atfihated
(The term ’expenditures’ means amounts paid or incurred.) organization s fotals group totats
1 a Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion {grass roots lobbying) . .
b Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying)
¢ Total lobbying expenditures (add lines 1a and 1b)
d Other exempt purpose expenditures . . .
e Total exempt purpose expenditures (add lines 1¢ and 1d)
f Lobbying nontaxable amount Enter the amount from the tollowmg table in
both columns C.
If the amount on line 1e, column (a) or (b} 1s The lobbying nontaxable amount is ce THD R e T
Not over $500,000 20% of the amount on line 1e : “ ’ SEl
Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500,000 T
Over $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 $175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000 ’ £
Over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000 $225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000
Over $17,000,000 $1,000,000
g Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line 11) .
h Subtract ine 1g from line 1a If zero or less, enter -0- .
i Subtract ine 1f from line 1¢ If zero or less, enter -0-

} f there 1s an amount other than zero on either ine 1h or ine 11, did the organization file Form 4720 reponlng
section 4911 tax for this year? . . . . . . DYes DNO

4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 501(h)

(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five
columns below. See the instructions for lines 2a through 2f.)

Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period

Calendar year (or hscal (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) Total
year beginning in)

2 a Lobbying non-taxable

amount

b Lobbying celling . R . i3
amount (150% of line : - Lt * . {3
2a, column (e)) N

¢ Total lobbying
expenditures

d Grassroots nontaxable

amount
e Grassroots celling S I
amount (150% of line e A
2d, column (e)) . et 2
f Grassroots Iobbymg
expenditures
BAA Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012

TEEA3202 01/07/13




Schedule C (Form 990 or 930-E2) 2012THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 3

|Part II-B ICompIete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and has NOT filed Form 5768
(election under section 501(h)).

(a) (b)
For each Yes' response to lines 1a through 11 below, provide in Part IV a detailed description
of the lobbying activity Yes | No Amount

1 Dunng the year, did the filing organization attempt to influence foreign, national, state or local
legislation, including any attempt to influence pubhc opinion on a legislative matter or referendum,
through the use of

a Volunteers? . . el . X
b Paid staff or management (include compensation in expenses reported on lines 1c¢ through 11)? X

¢ Media advertisements? . . . . .. . . .. X

d Mailings to members, legislators, or the public? S e . . . . X 0.
e Publications, or published or broadcast statements? . . e e e . X 0.
t Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes? . e e e e e X

g Direct contact with legislators, therr staffs, government officials, or a legisiative body'7 ..... . X 0.
h Ralles, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any similar means?. . . . . . X

1 Other activities? . .- .- . . . e X 0.

} Total Add lines 1c through 11

B
o

2 a Did the activities In line 1 cause the organization to be not described in section 501(c)(3)?
b If 'Yes,' enter the amount of any tax incurred under section 4912 . . .
¢ If 'Yes, enter the amount of any tax incurred by organization managers under section 4812 . . . S e
d If the tihng organization incurred a section 4912 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year?

[Part lll-A_[Complete it the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501 (c)(5), or
section 501(c)(6).

Yes | No
1 Were substantially ali (90% or more) dues received nondeductible by members? . . e . 1
2 Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 or less? .. . 2
3 Did the organization agree to carry over lobbying and political expenditures from the prior year? . .. 3

Part II-B_|Complete it the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section 501(c)
(6) and if either (a) BOTH Part lll-A, lines 1 and 2, are answered 'No’ OR (b) Part lll-A, line 3, is
answered 'Yes.’

1 Dues, assessments and similar amounts from members .. .. e . . 01

2 Section 162(e) nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures (do not include amounts of political
expenses for which the section 527(f) tax was paid).

a Currentyear . . . . .o [ .. . 2a

b Carryover from last year . . .. Lo L. . . 2b

c Total . . . . N P 2¢c
3 Aggregate amount reported in section 6033(e)(1)(A) notices of nondeductible section 162(e) dues .. 3

4 If notices were sent and the amount on ine 2c exceeds the amount on line 3, what portion of the excess
does the organization agree to carryover to the reasonable estimate of nondeductlble lobbying and polmcal -
expenditure nextyear? . . .. . . L L Lo Lo .. .. 4

5 Taxable amount of lobbying and pohtical expendltures (see |nslruct|ons) e e e .. .. 5
[PartlV™.[Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide the descriptions required for Part I-A, line 1, Part I-B, line 4, Part I-C, line 5, Part Hl-A (affiiated group list),
Part II-A, ine 2, and Part II-B, line 1 Also, complete this part for any additional information

Pt IT-B Line 11 _THIRTEEN _AND _ITS SOLE MEMBER, WNET RETAINED_ A CONSULTANT FOR _STATE

BAA Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012

TEEA3203 01/07/13
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Part IV |Supplementa| Information (continued)

BAA Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-E2Z) 2012
TEEA3204 01/07/13



OMB No 1545-0047

SCHEDULE D . ]

(Form 990) Supplemental Financial Statements 2012
» Complete if the organization answered 'Yes,' to Form 990, e =

Depariment of the Treasury PartlV, lines 6, 7, 8,9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. Open to Public

Internal Revenue Service » Attach to Form 990. *™ See separate instructions. Inspection

Name of the organization

THIRTEEN

Employer identification number

13-1945149

[Part] |Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if
the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

(a) Donor advised funds

(b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year

Aggregate contributions to (during year)

Aggregate grants from (during year)

Aggregate value at end of year

g & wWwiN -

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors 1n writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
are the organization’s property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control?

DYes D No

6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors 1n writing that grant funds can be used only
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

impermissible private benefit?

D Yes D No

l_P_art i |Conservation Easements. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part 1V, line 7.

1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply)
Preservation of land for public use (e g, recreation or education) HPreservatlon of an historically important land area

Protection of natural habitat
Preservation of open space

Preservation of a certified historic structure

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the

last day of the tax year

a Total number of conservation easements
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements

¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a)

d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 8/17/06, and not on a historic

structure listed in the National Register

Held at the End of the Tax Year

2a

2b

2¢c

2d

3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the

tax year »

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement 1s located »

5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations,

and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds?

DYes El No

6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

»>

7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

~$

8 Does each conservation easement reported on ine 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(1)

and section 170(h)(@)(B)(11)?

D Yes I:l No

9 In Part Xlll, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance sheet, and
include, If applicable, the text of the footnote to the organmization's financial statements that describes the organization's accounting for

conservation easements.

Part Il |Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in 1ts revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, hustorical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide,
in Part XllI, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items

b if the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report In its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for pubiic exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the

following amounts relating to these items
(@) Revenues included in Form 990, Part Vi, ine 1
(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X

=$
>$

2 If the orgamization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the following

amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items.

a Revenues included in Form 990, Part Vill, line 1
b Assets included in Form 990, Part X

>$
>$

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

TEEA3301

09/18/12

Schedule D (Form 990) 2012




Schedule D (Form 990) 2012 THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 2
|Part ill_|Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection
items (check all that apply)

a Public exhibition d Loan or exchange programs
b Scholarly research e Other
c Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in
| Part Xl
‘ 5 Dunng the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
| to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? D Yes DNo
{Part IV_| Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes'to Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or
| reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1 als the organization an agent, trustee, custodian, or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
on Form 990, Part X? D Yes DNo

b If 'Yes,' explain the arrangement in Part Xill and complete the following table

Amount
¢ Beginning balance . 1c
d Additions during the year 1d
e Distributions during the year le
f Ending balance . 1f
2 a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21? ‘__] Yes No
i b If "Yes,' explain the arrangement in Part XIlI Check here If the explantion has been provided in Part Xl ‘:|
| |Part V |Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current (b) Prior year (¢) Two years (d) Three years (e) Four years
1 a Beginning of year balance 82,147,778. 85,318,408. 76,898,073. 68,811,4009. 93,434,515.
b Contributions 1,014,731. 60,000. 1,364,513. 3,252,747. 1,286,863.
¢ Net investment earnings, gains,
and losses 6,734,161. 1,902,371. 12,093,490. 10,072,191.( -20,171,566.
d Grants or scholarships 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs 89,660,040. 4,904,000. 4,800,000. 5,000,000. 5,342,863.
f Administrative expenses 236,630. 229,001. 237,668. 238,274. 395,540.
g End of year balance 0. 82,147,778. 85,318,408. 76,898,073.] 68,811,409.
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment ™ %
b Permanent endowment *» %
| ¢ Temporanly restricted endowment *> %

: The percentages In lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%

3 a Are there endowment funds not In the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by Yes No
(i) unrelated organizations 3a(i) X
(ii) related organizations 3a(ii)| x

b If 'Yes' to 3a(ir), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? 3b X

4 Describe in Part XIll the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds

|Part VI |[Land, Buildings, and Equipment. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other basis (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
(investment) basis (other) depreciation

1aland
b Buildings
¢ Leasehold improvements
d Equipment
e Other
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10(c).) >
BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2012
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2012 THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 4
[Part XI |Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return

1 Total revenue, gans, and other support per audited financial statements . 1
2 Amounts included on hne 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIil, ine 12 i :
a Net unrealized gains on investments . . 2a
b Donated services and use of facilities . . . 2b
c Recoveries of prior year grants . . . 2¢ :
d Other (Descnbe in Part XHl) . .. . . 2d :
e Add lines 2a through 2d - . 2e
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 . . . 3
4 Amounts included on Form 980, Part VIIi, ine 12, but not on line 1 i
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, ine 7b 4a '
b Other (Descnbe In Part XII ) R . . . 4b
c Addlnesd4aand4b . . . .. . C. . 4c
5 Total revenue Addlnes 3 and 4c. (Th/s must equal Form 990, Part I, ine 12) .. 5
[Part Xl | Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Exgenses per Return
1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements . . .. . 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25 ki %
a Donated services and use of facilities ... . Ce . 2a é; :
b Prior year adjustments . . . . .. . . . 2b E; >
¢ Other losses . . . . . 2¢ i
d Other (Describe in Part XHH ) . .. - . . 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d . .. . . . .. 2e
3 Subtract hne 2e fromhnet1 . . . . . ... 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1* s
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIIl, ine 7b 4a gﬁé
b Other (Descrbe in Part Xlll') . . R 4b i
¢ Add lines 4a and 4b “ac
5 Total expenses Add lines 3 and 4c. (Th/s must equal Form 990, Part I, ine 18) 5

[Part Xll| Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide the descriptions required for Part i1, lines 3, 5, and 9, Part lll, ines 1a and 4, Part IV, Iines 1b and 2b, Part V,
hne 4, Part X, ine 2, Part Xl, lines 2d and 4b, and Part XII, nes 2d and 4b Also complete this part to prowde any additional information

Pt X Line 2 FIN 48 PER CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOOTNOTE 2 (O):

THIRTEEN HAS NO UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 AND

2012 IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS CODIFICATION ("ASC")

TOPIC 740 ("INCOME TAXES"), WHICH PROVIDES STANDARDS FOR

TAX POSITIONS. THIRTEEN IS NO LONGER SUBJECT TO FEDERAL AND STATE

BEFORE 2010.
BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2012

TEEA3304 11/30/12




Schedule D (Form 990) 2012 THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page §
[Part XIll |Supplemental Information (continued)

THIRTEEN TRANSFERRED THESE FUNDS TO ITS SOLE MEMBER, WNET.

BAA TEEA3305 06/08/12 Schedule D (Form 990) 2012




SCHEDULE G
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Supplemental Information Regarding
Fundraising or Gaming Activities

Complete if the organization answered 'Yes’ to Form 990, Part IV, lines 17, 18,

Department of the Treasury
Internat Revenue Service

or 19, or if the organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.
* Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

» See separate instructions

OMB No 1545-0047

2012

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization

THIRTEEN

Employer identification number

13-1945149

|::Part I | Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 17
Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part

1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activites Check all that apply

a E Mail solicitations

b m Internet and email solicitations
c E Phone solicitations

d E In-person solicitations

2a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, director.
employees listed in Form 990, Part Vi) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services?

e _|X__| Solicitation of non-government grants
f [X—| Solicitation of government grants
g Special fundraising events

s, trustees or key

. Yes DNO

b If 'Yes,’ list the ten highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser 1s 10 be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization

(i) Name and address of individual (1) Activity () Did fundraiser (1v) Gross recelpts (v) Amount paid to {(vi) Amount paid to
or enfity (fundraiser) have custody or control from activity (or retained by) (or retained by)
of contnibutions? fundraiser hsted in organization
column (i)
Yes No
1
THE SAGE GROUP PHONE SOLZC.~-TICH X 1,234,269. 629,703. 604,566.
2
YOUR VOICE MEDTA, TINCIPHCIE SLIC " -TICH X 115,2214. 46,728. 68,496.
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
Total - R - - - 1,349,493. 676,431. 673,062.
3 List all states in which the organization 1s registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified 1t 1s exempt from registration
or licensing
New York _ _ e ______
New Jersey Lol
Connectacut

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.
TEEA3701 01/07/13

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012




(a) Event #1 (b) Event #2 (c) Other events (d) Total events
- ' (add column (a)
boriesr's 507 arnarsiny through column (c))
2 {event type) {event type) (total number)
v
N | 1 Grossrecepts 3,612,584. 3,612,584.
u
E
2 Less Chantable contributions 3,203, 606. 3,203,606.
3 Gross ncome (ine 1 minus line 2) 408,978. 408, 978.
4 Cash prizes
5 Noncash prizes .
D
;'a 6 Rent/facility costs .
E
c
T 7 Food and beverages 106,506. 106, 506.
E
X 8 Entertainment 221,739. 221,739.
E
‘ 2 9 Other direct expenses 80, 733. 80,733.
s
10 Drirect expense summary Add lines 4 through 9 in column (d) > 408,978.
11 Netincome summary Combine line 3, column (d), and hne 10 .. > 0.
Part lll | Gaming. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes’ to Form 990, Part IV, ine 19, or reported more than

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2012

THIRTEEN

13-1945149

Page 2

[Part Il_| Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, Iine 18, or reported
more than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990- EZ lines 1 and 6b.
List events with gross receipts greater than $5,000.

$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, ne 6a

| (a) Bingo (b) Pull tabs/Instant (c) Other gaming (d) Total gaming
2 bingo/progressive (add column (a)
v bingo through column (c))
E
N
E
1 Gross revenue
2 Cashprnzes .
E
D X
& Bl 3 Non-cash pnizes
EN
Cs
T E| 4 Rentfaciity costs
Other direct expenses
Yes % Yes % Yes %
6 Volunteer labor . .. No No No

7 Direct expense summary Add lines 2 through 5 in column (d)

8 Net gaming Income summary Combine lines 1, column (d) and line 7. . .

9 Enter the state(s) in which the orgamzation operates gaming activities

a Is the orgamzation licensed to operate gaming activities In each of these states?
b If 'No,” explain

10a Were any of the organization's gaming hcenses revoked, suspended or terminated during the tax year?
b If 'Yes, explain

TEEA3702 01/07/13 Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012




Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012 THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 3
11 Does the organization operate gaming activities with nonmembers? .. ... . . . D Yes DNo

|:| Yes l:l No

12 |Is the orgamization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust or a member of a partnership or other entity formed to
administer chantable gaming? . .

13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity operated in
a The organization’s facility .. . 1 13a
b An outside facility . . . [ 13b]
14 Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization's gaming/special events books and records

o | o

15a Does the organization have a contact with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming revenue? .. I:]Yes DNo
b If 'Yes,’ enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization O T and the amount
of gaming revenue retained by the trdparty > S _
c If 'Yes, enter name and address of the third party

16 Gaming manager information

Gaming manager compensation * $

Description of services provided > __

I:] Drirector/officer DEmponee Dlndependent contractor

&

17 Mandatory distnibutions

a ls the orgamzation required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to retain the
state gaming hcense? DYes DNO
b Enter the amount of distnibuttons required under state law to be distnibuted to other exempt organtzations or spent in the

organization's own exempt activities during the tax year LS
[Part 1V |Supplemental Information. Complete this part {o provide the explanations required by Part |, line 2b,
columns (1) and (v), and Part I, ines 9, 9b, 10b, 15b, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable Also complete
this part to provide any additional information (see instructions).

BAA TEEA3703 01/07/13 Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012




SCHEDULE J Compensation Information
(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest

Compensated Employees
»> Complete if the orgamzation answered ’Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 23.

Department of lhe Treasur ) A
Internal Revenue Service 4 > Attach to Form 990. ™ See separate instructions.

OMB No 1545-0047

2012

Open 13 Public

B

Inspection

Name of the organization

THIRTEEN

Employer identification number

13-1945149

’Part I| Questions Regarding Compensation

1 a Check the appropriate box(es) If the organization provided any of the following to or for a person hsted in Form 990, Part

2

3

4

6

9

VII, Section A, line 1a Complete Part lil to provide any relevant information regarding these items

D First-class or charter travel Housmg allowance or restdence for personal use

I:] Travel for companions D Payments for business use of personal residence
Tax indemnification and gross-up payments |:|Health or social club dues or initiation fees

|:| Discretionary spending account DPersonal services (e g , maid, chaufteur, chet)

b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or

reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? if 'No,’ complete Part Ill to explain

Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all officers, directors,
trustees, and the CEQ/Executive Director, regarding the items checked in hne 1a? . .

Indicate which, If any, of the following the fiing orgamzation used to establish the compensation of the organization’s
CEO/Executive Director Check all that apply Do not check any boxes for methods used by a related organization to
establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part Il

@ Compensation committee DWrmen employment contract
E]Compensatlon survey or study
EApproval by the board or compensation committee

E Independent compensation consultant
@ Form 990 of other organizations

Durning the year, did any person listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a with respect to the fiing organization
or a related organization

a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment?
b Participate i, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan?
¢ Parlicipate in, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement?

If 'Yes’ to any of lines 4a-c, hst the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part Il

Only section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, ine 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the revenues of
a The organization?
b Any related organization”. ..
If 'Yes' to line 5a or 5b, descnbe in Part 11l
For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net earnings of
a The organization?
b Any related orgamzation?
If 'Yes' to ine 6a or 6b, describe in Part 1|

For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the orgamzahon prowde any non-fixed
payments not described In lines 5 and 67 If 'Yes,' descrbe in Part Il .

Were any amounts reported in Form 990, Part VI, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject
to the inial contract exception described in Regulallons section 53 4958- 4(a)(3)7
If 'Yes, describen Part Il . . . . . .. .

If 'Yes' to line 8, did the organlzatlon also follow the rebunable presumptlon procedure described in Regulatlons
section 53 4958-6(c)? . .

7 X
8 X
9

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Nohce, see the Instructions for Form 990.

TEEA4101 121012

Schedule J (Form 990) 2012
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SCHEDULE L
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Department of the Treasury
Inlernal Revenue Service

Transactions With Interested Persons

» Complete If the organization answered
'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 25a, 25b, 26, 27, 28a, 28b, 28c,

or Form 990-EZ, Part

V, ine 38a or 40b.

» Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. > See separate instructions.

OMB No 1545-0047

2012

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization

THIRTEEN

Employer 1dentification number

13-1945149

|Part I |Excess Benefit Transactions (section 501(c)(3) and section 501 (c)‘__4) organizations only)

Complete i the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, hne 25a or 25b, or

orm 990-EZ, Part V, ine 40b

(a) Name of disqualified person {b) Relatonship between disquahfied (c) Descnption of transaction (d) Corrected?
1 person and organization
Yes No
m
(2)
(3)
4
(5)
(6)
2 Enter the amount of tax incurred by the organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under
section 4958 P . . . . .. . > 5
3 Enter the amount of tax, if any, on hne 2, above, reimbursed by the organization . .. >3
Partli |Loans to and/or From Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes’ on Form 990-EZ, Page V, line 38a or Form 990, Part IV, line 26, or if the
organization reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 5, 6, or 22
(a) Name of interested person | (b) Relationship (c) Purpose (d) Loan to or (e) Onginal (1) Balance due (g) In default? | (h) Approved | (1) Wntten
with organization of lean ovg::zg:?ow principal amount gzrgtr)nz:lrlcég; agreement?
To From Yes No Yes No Yes No
)
()
(3)
4)
(5)
(6)
) -
(8)
9
(10)
Total . . . .. . . . .. .. »S$
[Part lll |Grants or Assistance Benefiting Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered 'Yes’ on Form 990, Part IV, ine 27
(a) Name of interested person (b) Relauonship between interested person (c) Amount of assistance {d) Type of Assistance (e) Purpose of assistance

and the organization

()]

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(€]

(8)

(9)

(19)

BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

TEEA4501

121112

Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-E2Z) 2012




Schedute L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012 THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 2
Part IV |Business Transactions Involving Interested Persons.
Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' on Form 990, Part IV, line 28a, 28b, or 28¢c
(a) Name of interested person {b) Relatonship between {c) Amount of (d) Description of transaclion {e) Sharing of
interested person and the transaction orgamization's
organization revenues?
Yes No
(1) AMERICAN PUBLIC TELEVISION |SEE NOTE #1 BELOW 271,327 . |SEE NOTE #1 BELOW X

(2)

3

4

(5)

(6)

0]

(8)

(9)

(10)

[Part V [Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see instructions)

NOTE #1 AMERICAN PUBLIC TELEVISION (APT) (f/k/a EASTERN EDUCATIONAL TELEVISION NETWORK

RELATIONSHIP: NEAL SHAPIRO, WNET PRESIDENT/CEO, THIRTEEN CHAIRMAN OF

THE BOARD AND PMNJ PRESIDENT/CEO AND TRUSTEE,

IS ALSO ON THE BOARD OF APT.

DESCRIPTION OF TRANSACTIONS: WNET IS A DUES-PAYING MEMBER OF APT.

IN EXCHANGE FOR ITS ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP DUES,

TO PROGRAMMING ACQUIRED AND DISTRIBUTED BY

WNET IS GRANTED ACCESS

TEEA4501 12/11/12

Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012
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Schedule N (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012 THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 3

[Part lll_[Supplemental Information. Complete to provide the information required by Part |, lines 2e
and 6¢, and Part ll, ine 2e. Also complete this part to provide any additional information

Part I, Line 2e __ _ON_JUNE 30, 2013, THIRTEEN AND WNET, BOTH OF WHICH ARE_EXEMPT PURSUANT TO_CODE
Part I, Line 2e __ SECTION 501(c) (3) AND CLASSIFIED AS PUBLIC CHARITIES, CONSQLIDATED, WITH_WNET AS
Part I, Line 2e __ _THE SURVIVING ENTITY_ _ PRIOR TQ THE CONSOLIDATION, WNET WAS THE_SOLE MEMBER OF.
Part I, Line 2e __ _THIRTEEN AND APPOINTED ITS BOARD_OF DIRECTORS. _AFTER THE CONSOLIDATION,.
Part I, Line 2e __ _SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE ASSETS OF THIRTEEN WERE TRANSFERRED BY WNET TO ITS
Part I, Line 2e WHOLLY OWNED LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, THIRTEEN PRODUCTIONS LLC.

BAA TEEA4703 1217/12 Schedule N {Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012




OMB No 1545-0047

2012

SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

Open to Public
D f the T A
Inmornal Revenue Service.” > Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer 1dentification number
THIRTEEN 13-1945149

THIRTEEN'S MISSION: BE A LEADING PROVIDER OF EDUCATIONAL, INFORMATIONAL AND CULTURAL

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES, USING ALL MEDIA, WHICH REFLECT AND RESPECT A DIVERSE

RESPONSIBLE CITIZENSHIP, ADHERE TO THE HIGHEST STANDARDS OF ARTISTIC AND EDITQORIAL

INTEGRITY, AND CREATE OPPORTUNITY FOR EXPERIMENTATION.

Pt VI, Line la THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THIRTEEN IS NOT INDEPENDENT BECAUSE IT CONSISTS OF SENIOR

MANAGERS OF WNET. THEY ARE VETTED AND ELECTED BY THE BOARD OF WNET

Pt VI, Line 2 SOME OF THE OFFICERS AND TRUSTEES OF THIRTEEN ARE ALSO OFFICERS OF WNET.

Pt VI, Line 4 ON JUNE 30, 2013, THIRTEEN AND WNET, BOTH OF WHICH ARE EXEMPT PURSUANT TO CODE

SECTION 501 (c) (3) AND CLASSIFIED AS PUBLIC CHARITIES, CONSOLIDATED, WITH WNET AS

THE SURVIVING ENTITY PRIOR TO THE CONSOLIDATION, WNET WAS THE SOLE MEMBER OF

______________ THIRTEEN AND APPOINTED ITS BOARD OF DIRECTORS. AFTER THE_ CONSOLIDATION,_
WHOLLY OWNED LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, THIRTEEN PRODUCTIONS LLC.

PL VI, Line 6__ __WNET IS A_NEW_YORK EDUCATION CORPORATION_ AND IS_THE SOLE_MEMBER OF THIRTEEN.
Pt VI, Line Ja_ __THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF WNET ELECTS_THE DIRECTORS_FOR THIRTEEN ON AN ANNUAL BASIS.
Pt VI, Line 7b SAME AS PART VI, LINE 7a.

AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE BEFORE IT WAS FILED. THE AUDIT COMMITTEE AND THE BOARD
BAA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-E2 TEEA4901 12/8/12 Schedule O {Form 890 or 990-EZ) 2012




Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2Z) 2012 Page 2

Name of the organization

THIRTEEN

Employer identification number

13-1945149

Pt VI, Line 1l2c

REVIEWED THE IRS FORM 990 AND MADE RECOMMENDATIONS TO WNET MANAGEMENT

GENERAL COUNSEL’S OFFICE. THE DISCLOSURE STATEMENTS ARE THEN REVIEWED ANNUALLY BY

THE WNET’S GENERAL COUNSEL’S OFFICE IN ADDITION, IN THE EVENT THAT A DIRECTOR BELIEVES

THAT HE OR SHE MAY HAVE A CONFLICT OF INTEREST, SUCH DIRECTOR SHALL DISCLOSE IT,

IN WRITING, TO THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND THE CORPORATE SECRETARY OR, IF SUCH

CONFLICT ARISES IN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK OF A BOARD COMMITTEE, TO THE CHAIRMAN

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE CONCERNED COMMITTEE, AS THE CASE MAY BE, IN CONSULTATION WITH

THE CORPORATE SECRETARY, DETERMINES THAT THERE IS A CONFLICT OF INTEREST, THEY WILL

OF THE INDIVIDUAL, WHILE MAINTAINING THE ETHICAL STANDARDS & IF UNABLE TO RESOLVE

BOARD AS AVAILABILITY PERMITS, WHICH SHALL DETERMINE A COURSE OF ACTION (WHICH MAY

THE CORPORATIONeS SOLE MEMBER, WNET) THAT WILL BEST SERVE THE CORPORATIONeS

INTERESTS AND THAT WILL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE HIGHEST ETHICAL STANDARDS. THE

Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012
TEEA4902 12/8/12




Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012 Page 2
Name of the orgamzation Employer identification number
THIRTEEN 13-1945149

Pt VI, Lane 15b _
Pt VI, Line 19 _ _
Pt VIII, Line 1 __

RETIREMENT, 1S REASONABLE AND CONSISTENT WITH COMPENSATION PRACTICES FOR
SEE_PART VI, LINE 15A ABOVE. _ _ ___ __________________________.

WWW THIRTEEN ORG THIRTEEN ALSO POSTS ON ITS WEBSITE ITS LATEST FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (INCLUDED

IN WNET'S CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS), ITS IRS FORM 930 AND ITS EMPLOYEE

AND DIRECTOR CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICIES. THE FORM 990 IS ALSO AVAILABLE_THROUGH
OF INCOME AND/OR APPRECIATION OF PROPERTY. THE NATURE OF AN INVESTMENT

Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-E2Z) 2012
TEEA4902 121812




Schedule O (Form 990 or 930-E2) 2012 Page 2

Name of the organization Employer identification number

THIRTEEN 13-1945149

A JOINT VENTURE. ALL SUCH INVESTMENTS ARE MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH BOTH THIRTEEN’S

FUNDS IN A MANNER THAT MAY JEOPARDIZE TAX-EXEMPT STATUS. FOR EXAMPLE, THIRTEEN

BAA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012
TEEA4902 12/8/12
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Schedule R (Form 990) 2012 THIRTEEN 13-1945149 Page 5

Part VIl _|Supplemental Information
Complete this part to provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R
(see instructions).

BAA TEEA5005 12/28/12 Schedule R (Form 990) 2012
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WNET AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Together with Independent Auditors’ Report)

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

Marks Paneth & Shron ...

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants
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WNET
(A New York Education Corporation Chartered by the Board of Regents)
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Together with Independent Auditors’ Report)

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012
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N Marks Paneth & Shron ...

Certfied Puhbiic Accrmeants & Consultants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of
WNET

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of WNET (a New York education corporation
chartered by the Board of Regents) and subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of activities
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of account policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of WNET and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 and the changes in their net
assets and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

685 THIRD AVENUE MANHATTAN

NEW YORK, NY 10017 LONG ISLAND |

P.212.503.8800 F. 212.370.3759 WESTCHESTER ”’r Morison International
WWW.MARKSPANETH.COM CAYMAN ISLANDS .




Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The supplemental schedules of functional expenses (shown on pages 21 and 22) are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Sy fomest L2

New York, NY
December 3, 2013




WNET

(A New York Education Corporation Chartered by the Board of Regents)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2B and 19)
Investments (Notes 2C, 4, 5, 8, 15 and 18)
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $49,000 and $291,000 in 2013 and 2012, respectively) (Note 2J)
Grants and gifts receivable, net (Notes 24, 3 and 15)
Costs incurred for programs not yet telecast (Notes 2D and 7)
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net (Note 6)
Property and equipment, net (Notes 2E and 7)
Intangible assets (Note 2G)

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses {(Notes 2H, 2K and 13C)
Deferred revenue (Note 14)
Bank line of credit and loans payable (Note 8)

TOTAL LIABILITIES

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 13)

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted:
Operations
Appropriated investment earnings (Note 18)
Board designated (Note 18)
Total unrestricted

Temporarily restricted (Note 9):
Program restricted
Unappropriated investment eamings (Note 18)
Total temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted (Notes 10 and 18)
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2013 2012
16,300,000 $ 20,120,000
91,033,000 89,070,000

2,269,000 3,796,000
42,968,000 60,083,000
19,595,000 9,081,000

9,999,000 9,981,000
33,560,000 37,186,000
13,554,000 13,554,000

$ 229,278,000 $ 242,871,000
33,933,000 $ 31,437,000

7,441,000 5,849,000

7,092,000 14,963,000
48,466,000 52,249,000
16,168,000 19,733,000

4,255,000 4,524,000
14,530,000 14,530,000
34,953,000 38,787,000
79,979,000 89,213,000
11,285,000 9,042,000
91,264,000 98,255,000
54,595,000 53,580,000

180,812,000 190,622,000
$ 229,278,000 $ 242,871,000
-3-
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WNET
(A New York Education Corporation Chartered by the Board of Regents)
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets $ (9,810,000) $ 17,497,000
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 5,332,000 5,374,000
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets (11,000) 527,000
Bad debt expense 479,000 588,000
Loss/(gain) on sale of stock contnbutions 16,000 (4,000)
Endowment contnbutions (1,015,000) (60,000)
Realized gains on investments (953,000) (1,638,000)
Unrealized (gains)/losses on investments (4,150,000) 1,599,000
Subtotal (10,112,000) 23,883,000
| Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable 1,102,000 1,927,000
Grants and gifts receivable 17,061,000 (9,860,000)
Costs incurred for programs not yet telecast (10,514,000) 5,386,000
Prepaid expenses and other assets (18,000) (51,000)
Increase (decrease) In liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,141,000 (1,118,000)
Deferred revenue 1,592,000 (1,843,000)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,252,000 18,324,000
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment purchases and reinvested income (18,780,000) (9,188,000)
Proceeds from sales of investments 21,920,000 12,547,000
Loss/(gain) on sale of stock contributions {16,000) 4,000
Purchase of property and equipment {1,695,000) (2,882,000)
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 1,429,000 481,000
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Endowment contributions 1,015,000 60,000
Proceeds from loan payable 65,000 -
Repayment of bank line of credit and loans payable (7,936,000) (7,861,000)
Repayment of annuity obligations (645,000) (651,000)
Net Cash Used by Financing Activities _(7.501,000) (8,452,000)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,820,000) 10,353,000
} Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 20,120,000 9,767,000
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 16,300,000 $ 20,120,000
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid during the year $ 302,000 $ 457,000
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -5-




WNET
(A New York Education Corporation Chartered by the Board of Regents)
AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 1—ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

WNET (“WNET” or the "Company"), is a New York education corporation chartered by the Board of Regents of
the University of the State of New York on April 15, 2008. Its mission is to acquire, distribute, and through its
controlled subsidiaries, THIRTEEN Productions, LLC, WLIW L.L.C. ("WLIW"), Creative News Group, LLC
("CNG") and Interactive Engagement Group LLC ("IEG"), produce public educational television programs.
WNET is the sole member of THIRTEEN, WLIW, CNG and IEG. WNET serves the entire New York City
metropolitan area with unique local productions, broadcasts and innovative educational projects. WNET's goal
is to create media experiences of lasting significance for New York, America and the world. On March 20, 2009,
WNET received a final determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service granting it tax-exempt status
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code.

Formed in 1961, Educational Broadcasting Corporation (“EBC") was a New York education corporation
chartered by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York. WNET, through EBC, produced
public television programs individually and in collaboration with other entities and broadcast such programs on
Channel 13, Channel 21 and on other public television stations throughout the United States. On June 22,
2010, EBC changed its name to THIRTEEN. On June 30, 2013, THIRTEEN was consolidated with and into
WNET, with WNET as the surviving entity. Also on June 30, 2013, Thirteen Productions LLC (“THIRTEEN”)
was created and the production assets formerly held by EBC were contributed to THIRTEEN. THIRTEEN
produces public television programs.

In 2003, EBC acquired the assets of the Long Island Educational TV Council, Inc. and transferred those assets
to WLIW. 1In 2008, EBC transferred its ownership of WLIW to WNET. WLIW produces public television
programs for broadcast on Channel 13, Channel 21 and on other public television stations throughout the
United States. WLIW is a Delaware limited liability company.

In 2008, WNET acquired CNG. CNG produces public television programs for broadcast on Channel 13,
Channel 21 and on other public television stations throughout the United States. CNG is a New York limited
liability company.

In April 2009, IEG (formerly, WNET.ORG Properties) was formed to administer the interactive media and web
programming of the Company. IEG is a Delaware limited liability company.

In 2011, the Company, through its sole member WLIW, established Public Media NJ, Inc. (“PMNJ"), a New
Jersey nonprofit corporation. PMNJ entered into an agreement with the New Jersey Public Broadcasting
Authority to provide certain operational, fundraising and back-office services and public television programs,
including New Jersey-centric programming specifically designed to meet the needs of the citizens of New
Jersey. PMNJ commenced operations on July 1, 2011. Prior to December 6, 2012, WLIW, L.L.C. (“WLIW") was
the sole member of PMNJ; effective December 6, 2012, WNET (the sole member of WLIW) became the sole
member of PMNJ.

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Presentation — The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S.
GAAP"). The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of WNET and its
subsidiaries, THIRTEEN, WLIW, CNG, IEG and PMNJ. All intercompany balances have been eliminated.
Also, the Company's consolidated financial statement amounts were rounded to the nearest thousand.

B. Cash and Cash Equivalents — The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments with a maturity of
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents, except money market funds held in the
investment portfolio.

C. Investments — Investments are stated at fair value. Fair value for investments traded publicly is based on
published market prices. Fair values of investments not traded publicly have been estimated by management
based on information provided by the fund managers, the general partners or the limited liability companies.
Investment transactions are accounted for on the date the investments are purchased or sold (trade date).
The realized gains from the sale of securities, capital gain distributions, interest and dividend income are
recorded as earned.




WNET
(A New York Education Corporation Chartered by the Board of Regents)
AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the consolidated financial statements include investments valued at
$41,295,000 and $27,159,000, respectively, whose value has been estimated by management based on
information provided by the fund managers or general partners of the investment companies.

Costs Incurred for Programs Not Yet Telecast — Costs incurred for programs not yet telecast relate to
programs that will be aired subsequent to the Company’s fiscal year-end. As the programs are telecast, these
costs are included in operating expenses and related restricted net assets, if any are released.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. The
amounts do not purport to represent replacement or recoverable values. The Company capitalizes computer
equipment with a cost of $500 or more, and all other property and equipment with a cost of $5,000 or more and
a useful life of greater than three years. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the
useful lives of the assets, ranging from 3 to 40 years. Expenditures for leasehold improvements are capitalized
and amortized over the shorter of the life of the asset or the lease term.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets — In accordance with ASC 360-10, Property, Plant and Equipment,
“Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camying value of the asset may not be
recoverable. No impairment loss has been recognized by the Company for the years ended June 30, 2013
and 2012.

. Intangible Assets — Intangible assets of $13,554,000 consists of two components. The first component

relates to the 1961 Channel Thirteen purchase and amounts to $5,854,000. This amount resulted from the
excess of the purchase price over the net tangible assets (resulting in goodwill) of Channel Thirteen and the
acquisition of its broadcast license. The second component relates to the 2003 purchase of the WLIW
broadcast license and amounts to $7,700,000. Intangible assets have not been amortized as permitted by
U.S. GAAP. In the opinion of management, both the excess purchase price over the net tangible assets and
the broadcast license are deemed to have indefinite lives, and no diminution in value has occurred. There
were no impairment charges recorded during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

Life Annuities — The Company has entered into Life Annuity Trusts whereby donors receive payments for the
remainder of their lives with any remainder at death reverting to the Company. The remainders of all such
agreements have been permanently restricted by the donors. The liability is determined based on actuarial
assumptions and, as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, a liability of $4,368,000 and $4,475,000, respectively, was
included in accounts payable and accrued expenses. The amount of contributions recorded by the Company
is the fair value of the trust assets received less the present value of the estimated annuity payments. As of
June 30, 2013 and 2012, the trust assets were $7,150,000 and $7,027,000, respectively.

Contributions and Grants — Contributions and grants are recognized as revenue when they are received or
unconditionally pledged.

The Company reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified
to unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

The Company reports gifts of cash and other assets as permanently restricted support when use by the
Company is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by the passage of time nor can be fulfilled
or otherwise removed by actions of the Company. Earmings on permanently restricted net assets are available
for various programs as described in Note 10.

-7-




WNET
(A New York Education Corporation Chartered by the Board of Regents)
AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

The Company reports gifts of property and equipment as unrestricted support unless explicit donor stipulations
specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify
how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets
are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets
must be maintained, the Company reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired long-
lived assets are placed in service.

Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, nonprofit organizations are
required to reflect contribution revenue in the year received despite the fact that, at times, certain of these
contributions are purpose restricted and the expenditures to accomplish the purpose do not occur until a
subsequent period. It is this accounting methodology that can cause significant differences in the change in
net assets between years.

J. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts — Accounts receivable represents money owed the Company arising from
licensing and programming fees, nonbroadcast sales, facility rental and reimbursement for expenses. The
Company estimates the allowance for doubtful accounts based on management's evaluation of the
creditworthiness of its donors and grantors, the aged basis of its receivables, as well as current economic
conditions and historical information.

K. Deferred Rent — The Company leases real property under operating leases expiring at various dates in the
future (see Note 13). Since the rent payments increase over time, the Company records an adjustment to rent
expense each year to reflect its straight-lining policy. The annual adjustment recorded for the years ended
June 30, 2013 and 2012 amounted to a $223,000 and $94,000 increase, respectively. Straight-lining of rent
gives rise to a timing difference that is reflected as accounts payable and accrued expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, such deferrals
amounted to $8,225,000 and $8,002,000, respectively.

L. Nonbroadcast Sales — Nonbroadcast sales are generated primarily from home video sales and royalties.
Home video sales are recorded as eamed. Revenue from royalties is recognized, net of royalties payable,
upon notification from the third party distributor.

M. Other Income -~ Other income is generated from facility rental fees and reimbursement for expenses.
Additionally, during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company recognized revenue from the
licensing of its unused spectrum (see Note 14).

N. Measure of Operations — The Company includes in its definition of operations, all support, revenue and
expenses that are an integral part of its program and supporting activities. Endowment contributions, non-
recurring items and investment income, including realized and unrealized gains and losses, eamed in excess
of the Company's authorized spending policy, are recognized as non-operating activities and support.

0. Income Taxes — WNET and its subsidiaries are exempt from Federal income taxation under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Intemal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income tax has been recorded in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

P. Use of Estimates — The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP
requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, as well
as liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Q. Fair Value Measurements — Fair value measurements are based on the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. In order to increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements, a fair
value hierarchy prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs used to measure fair value into three levels,
as described on the following page:

-8-




WNET
(A New York Education Corporation Chartered by the Board of Regents)
AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

o Level 1 - Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New York
Stock Exchange. Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency securities and federal
agency mortgage-backed securities, which are traded by dealers or brokers in active markets.
Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving
identical assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 - Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets. Valuations
are obtained from third-party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

o Level 3 - Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies,
including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models or similar techniques, and not based on
market exchange, dealer, or broker-traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain
assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to such assets or liabilities.

R. Investment Spending Policy — The Company’s Board has authorized a policy to provide a predictable flow of
funds to support operations. The policy pemmits up to a 5% spending rate to be used for operations based on
the average cumulative investment fund balance for the past five fiscal years as long as unappropriated
investment eamnings are available.

S. Recent Accounting Pronouncements — In September 2011, The FASB issued ASU 2011-09,
“Disclosures about an Employer's Participation in a Multiemployer Plan.” This update amends ASC 715-80,
“Compensation-Retirement Benefits-Multiemployer Plans” to require additional disclosures about an
employer's participation in a multiemployer pension plan including additional information about the pians,
the level of an employer’s participation in the plans and the financial health of significant plans. This update
does not change the accounting for an employer's participation in a multiemployer pension plans. The
amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2012.

NOTE 3—GRANTS AND GIFTS RECEIVABLE

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company has unconditional grants and gifts receivable as follows:

2013 2012
Amount due in less than one year 3 39,766,000 $ 48,599,000
Amount due from one to five years 3,446,000 11,538,000
Amount due after five years 1,319,000 1,376,000
44 531,000 61,513,000
Less: Unamortized discount to present value (1,013,000) (1,130,000)
Allowance for doubtful accounts (550,000) (300,000)

$  42068.000 $ _ 60.083.000

The pledges to be received after one year are discounted to present value at interest rates ranging from 0.7% to
6.00%. The amortization of the discount is reflected as additional contribution revenue in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.



WNET

(A New York Education Corporation Chartered by the Board of Regents)

AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 4—INVESTMENTS

The major classes of investments as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013 2012
Cash and money market funds $ 7,173,000 4,173,000
U.S. equity funds 20,498,000 16,149,000
International equity funds 15,664,000 14,112,000
Fixed income funds 19,187,000 36,090,000
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (“TIPS”) 8,241,000 8,653,000
Altemative investments - hedge fund of funds 17,116,000 6,491,000
Natural resources trust 3,154,000 3,402,000

Certain investments including altemative investments are made up of hedge fund of funds that invest primarily in
limited partnerships and private investment companies. Investments in limited partnerships are generally carried at
fair value, as determined by the investees’ General Partners. Such value generally represents the Company's
proportionate share of the Partner's capital of the investment partnerships as reported by their general partners.
The investments in private investment companies are valued at fair value using the net assets valuations provided
by the underlying private investment companies, unless management determined another valuation is more
appropriate. Substantially all the underlying assets of the limited partnership and private investment companies
consist of public equity securities, bonds, cash and cash equivalents, and other investments stated at fair value.

Alternative investments include investments in hedge funds whose objective is to provide investors with compound
annual long-term retumns that are superior to the broad market averages while having less risk than the overall
stock market. The agreement underlying this investment limits the Company’s ability to liquidate its interest in such
investments for a period of time.

Securities with no readily available market are initially valued at cost, with subsequent adjustments to values which
reflect either the basis of meaningful third-party transactions in the private market or the fair value deemed
appropriate by the General Partners of the underlying investment partnership. In such instances, consideration is
also given to the financial condition and operating results of the issuer, the amount that the investment partnerships
can reasonably expect to realize upon the sale of the securities, and any other factors deemed relevant.

Securities with readily available markets (listed on a securities exchange or traded in an over-the-counter market)
are valued at quoted market prices or at an appropriate discount from such price if marketability of the securities is
limited.

Investment securities, in general, are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, credit, and overall market
volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is reasonably possible that
changes in the value of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially
affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements. Additionally, due to the inherent uncertainty
of these valuations, the estimated fair value of investments without a readily detemminable fair value may differ from
the fair value that would have been used had a ready market existed for the investments, and these differences
could be material.

-10-




WNET
(A New York Education Corporation Chartered by the Board of Regents)
AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 4—INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Investment income during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 follows:

2013 2012
Income from investment fund:
Realized gains $ 953,000 $ 1,638,000
Unrealized gains (losses) 4,150,000 {1,599,000)
5,103,000 39,000
Dividends/interest 1,631,000 1,863,000

$§ 6734000 $§ 1902000

The transfer from the investment fund of current and prior period accumulated income amounted to $4,524,000
and $4,904,000 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The total investment income from
operations was comprised of the following:

Total investment fund income

2013 2012
Investment fund — Board authorized $ 4,524,000 $ 4,904,000
Dividends/interest - operations 50,000 27,000
Realized/unrealized (loss)/gain - operations {19,000) 7,000

Total investment income from operations
NOTE 5—INVESTMENT FUND

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, approximately $17,942,000 and $26,709,000, respectively, of investments were
pledged as collateral against the loans and bank line of credit of $4,333,000 and $11,333,000, respectively, as
described in Note 8.

From the inception of the investment fund through June 30, 2013 and 2012, $205,288,000 and $197,320,000,
including investment income, was received by the Company for the investment fund, respectively, and
$114,255,000 and $108,250,000, respectively, was expended for operations.

The following summarizes the cumulative activity of the investment fund for the years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012:

2013 2012

Investment fund revenue including investment income:

Pemanently restricted grants and gifts and cumulative income $ 116,392,000 $ 109,672,000

National Endowment for the Arts ("NEA") cash reserve fund 1,932,000 1,932,000
Donor-designated programming and facilities projects 22,638,000 22,438,000
Operating fund 64,326,000 63,278,000
Total investment fund income 205,288,000 197,320,000
Deductions:
Gifts received and expended from permanently restricted and
Donor-designated funds 87,625,000 81,935,000
Expended from operating fund 26,630,000 26,315,000
Total deductions 114,255,000 108,250,000
$ 91,033,000 389,070,000
Net investment fund balances including investment income:
Endowment fund $ 44,905,000 $ 44,174,000
NEA cash reserve fund 1,932,000 1,932,000
Operating fund 44,196,000 42,964,000
$ 91,033,000 $ 89,070,000
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AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 6 — PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER ASSETS

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, prepaid expense and other assets consist of the following:

2013 2012
Membership premiums $ 1,412,000 §$ 1,393,000
Deferred lease asset 1,645,000 1,799,000
Deferred tenant incentive 1,059,000 1,254,000
Charitable remainder trusts 3,596,000 3,471,000
Prepaid insurance and other 2,287,000 2,064,000

NOTE 7—PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, property and equipment consists of the following:

2013 2012
Land, building and leasehold improvements $ 25,146,000 $ 24,771,000
Television and other equipment 42,372,000 41,354,000
Total cost 67,518,000 66,125,000

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (33,958.,000) (28,939,000)
Net book value $ 33560000 $ 37,186,000

Depreciation and amortization for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 amounted to $5,332,000 and
$5,374,000, respectively. During the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, certain property and equipment with a
total cost of approximately $314,000 and $4,702,000, respectively, and accumulated depreciation of approximately

$303,000 and $4,175,000, respectively, were written off.
NOTE 8—BANK LINE OF CREDIT AND LOANS PAYABLE

The bank line of credit and loans payable consisted of the following as of June 30, 2013 and 2012:

The Company has a $15,000,000 line of credit with a bank, bearing interest at
LIBOR plus .90% with an original expiration date of August 10, 2013. The
agreement was extended through August 10, 2014 and amended with an
interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.75% with an unused line of credit rate of 0.13%.
There are no outstanding borrowings on this line of credit as of June 30, 2013
and December 3, 2013. See below for collateral.

The Company has a 60-month term loan expiring on August 10, 2015 with a
bank that originally amounted to $10,000,000. This loan bears interest at
LIBOR plus 1.25% and the principal is repayable in equal monthly instaliments
plus interest. See below for collateral.

The Company has a 60-month term loan expiring on February 28, 2016 with an
unrelated financing entity that originally amounted to $4,700,000. This loan
bears interest at 4.745% with monthly repayments of principal and interest of
approximately $88,000. Certain office equipment of the Company serves as
collateral on the term loan.

The Company has a 24-month unsecured term loan expiring on June 30, 2014
with an unrelated entity that originaily amounted to $65,000. This loan bears
interest at 0.30% with quarterly repayments of principal and interest of
approximately $8,000.

2013 2012

$ - $ 5,000,000

4,333,000 6,333,000

2,726,000 3,630,000

33,000 -
$_7.092,000 $ 14.963.000
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AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 8—BANK LINE OF CREDIT AND LOANS PAYABLE (Continued)

Approximately $17,942,000 and $26,706,000 of investments as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, were
pledged as collateral against the line of credit (with a maximum borrowing of $15,000,000) and the term loan
(with an original balance of $10,000,000). Under the terms of the line of credit, the Company is required to meet
certain financial covenants, and as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company was in compliance with these

covenants.

Future annual principal payments after June 30, 2013 are as follows:

2014 $ 2,982,000
2015 2,995,000
2016 1,115,000

$ _7.002,000

NOTE 9—TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes:

2013 2012
Underwriting for designated projects $ 52,654,000 $ 52,908,000
CPB program grants 1,312,000 1,633,000
CPB community service grant 11,757,000 10,662,000
PBS program services grants 14,256,000 24,010,000
Unappropriated investment eamings (Note 17):
Fiscal year 2011 3,115,000 418,000
Fiscal year 2012 1,672,000 6,952,000
Fiscal year 2013 6,498,000 1,672,000
$ 01264000 §  98.255.000
NOTE 10—PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, permanently restricted net assets consist of the following:

2013 2012
General programs $ 24,396,000 $ 24,247,000
Art and humanities programs 10,988,000 10,988,000
Social programs 11,337,000 11,337,000
Education resources fund 261,000 231,000
Children’s programs 2,804,000 2,804,000
Science and nature programs 2,322,000 1,986,000
News and public affairs programs 1,987,000 1,987,000

Campaign Arts and Culture 500,000 -
$_ _ 54,595.000 $ __ 53.580.000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 11—IN-KIND INCOME

During the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company received approximately $8,349,000 and
$10,900,000, respectively, of production in-kind income. These amounts have been calculated based upon the fair
value of the services performed by the donors and are included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements as follows:

2013 2012
Revenues-underwriting for designated projects $ 8.349.000 $ 10,900,000
Expenses:
National Program Service $ 8,349,000 $ 10,900,000

NOTE 12—RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company has a defined contribution retirement plan under IRC Section 403(b) for primarily all full-time
nonunion employees who have completed two years of service. The Company’s minimum contribution rate under
the plan was 3% of eligible compensation. The Company has the option to make or not to make a discretionary
nonelective contribution to an eligible employee retirement account. In addition, employee contributions will be
matched by the Company up to 3% of eligible compensation.

Expenses under the plan for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, amounted to $619,000 and $602,000,
respectively. The Company’s policy is to fund retirement plan costs currently.

MULTI-EMPLOYER PLANS

For union employees, the Company contributes to a number of multiemployer defined benefit pension plans
under the terms of collective-bargaining agreements that cover its union-represented employees. The risks of
participating in these multiemployer plans are different from single-employer plans in the following aspects:

e Assets contributed to the multiemployer plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to
employees of other participating employers.

+ If a participating employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded obligations of the plan may be
borne by the remaining participating employers.

« If the Company chooses to stop participating in some of its multiemployer plans, the Company may be
required to pay those plans an amount based on the underfunded status of the plan, referred to as a
withdrawal liability.

The Company's participation in these plans is outlined in the table below. The “EIN/Pension Plan Number”
column provides the Employee Identification Number (“EIN”) and the three-digit plan number. The most recent
Pension Protection Act (“PPA") zone status available in 2013 and 2012 are for the plan years noted below,
which include the plans funded percentage. The zone status is based on information that the Company
received from the plans and is certified by the plan’s actuary. Among other factors, plans in the red zone are
generally less than 65 percent funded, plans in the yellow zone are less than 80 percent funded, and plans in
the green zone are at least 80 percent funded. The significance of entering critical status is that the Plan's
Trustees are required by law to adopt a “rehabilitation plan,” consistent with the requirements of the PPA,
designed to improve the Plan’s financial health and to allow it to emerge from critical status.

The “FIP/RP Status Pending/Implemented” column indicates plans for which a financial improvement plan
(“FIP") or a rehabilitation plan (“RP") is either pending or has been implemented. The last column lists the
expiration date(s) of the collective-bargaining agreement(s) to which the plans are subject. The Company has
no plans to withdraw.

The Company’s contribution to these plans is specified by the union collective bargaining agreements and
approximated $844,000 and $849,000 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 12—RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Collective
Employer FIP/RP Bargaining
Identification Status Agreement
Number/Plan | PPA Zone Status| Pending/ Surcharge Expiration Critical Status
Pension Plan Name Number 2012 2011 Implemented Imposed Dates 2012 | 2011
American Federation of
Musicians & Employers’
Pension Fund 51-6120204/001 | Green | Green Yes Yes A Yes Yes
AFTRA Retirement Fund 13-6414972/001 | Green | Green N/A No B No No
Directors Guild of America —
Producer Pension Plan 95-2892780/001 | Green | Green N/A No 7/31/2015 No No
Radio, Television
Recording Arts Pension 13-6159229/001 | Red | Yellow Yes Yes c Yes Yes
Central Pension Fund of the
International Union of
Operating Engineers 36-6052390/001 | Green | Green N/A No 12/31/2014 No No
Pension Fund of Local No.
One, |.A.T.S.E. 13-6414973/001 | Green | Green N/A No D No No
Screen Actors Guild —
Producers Pension Plan 92-2110997/001 | Green | Green N/A No N/A No No
Producer — Writers Guild of
America Pension Plan 95-2216351/001 | Green | Green N/A No 6/30/2014 No No
Annuity Fund of Local No.
One, |.A.T.S.E. 13-3022965/001 | Green | Green N/A No D No No
Footnotes:
A. The CBA between THRITEEN and the American Federation of Musicians expired on December 10, 2005

but the Company has an ongoing obligation in accordance with the last negotiated agreement.

The funded percentage as of April 1, 2011 is projected to be 92.37%. The Plan passes all four tests as
required under IRC Section 432(b)(2), to determine whether the plan is in critical status. However, the Plan
remains in critical status since it fails to meet the requirement under IRC Section 432(e)(4)(2) to emerge
from critical status as the Plan is projected to have an accumulated funding deficiency for the plan year
ending March 31, 2021.

THIRTEEN is a party to three CBAs with AFTRA PTV Local, AFTRA PTV National and AFTRA Staff. The
agreement with AFTRA PTV Local renew automatically at the beginning of each year. The agreements with
AFTRA PTV National and AFTRA Staff expired on February 28, 2013 and August 31, 2001, respectively.
However, the Company has an ongoing obligation in accordance with the last negotiated agreements.

EBC and WLIW are both parties to the CBA which expired on April 1, 2013 and June 30, 2011, respectively.
As of the date the financial statements were issued, the parties are in the process of negotiations. EBC was
listed on the Plan’s Form 5500 as providing more than 5% of the total contributions.

THIRTEEN and CNG are parties to the CBA, which are expiring on January 31, 2017 and March 28, 2016,
respectively.
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NOTE 13—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. The Company has entered into various real estate lease agreements expiring through 2026. In December
1997, as a result of the contracted sale of its building, the Company entered into a 21-year operating lease at
450 West 33" Street. In April 2003, the Company entered into a 15-year operating lease at the Empire State
Building for its transmission facilities. As part of this agreement, annual rent expense increased as the
Company began transmitting its digital signal at full power from the Empire State Building. This rent increase
has been included in the future minimum rentals.

In November 2008, the Company entered into a 15-year and 5-month operating lease at Lincoln Center for the
Performing Arts, Inc. primarily for the studio site of the Company’s various programs.

In August 2010, the Company entered into a 16-year operating lease for its new office space located in New
York City. The lease provides a period of free rent and base rental amounts that increase at certain points
during the lease term. In addition, the Company provided a letter of credit amounting to $5,000,000 upon the
execution of the lease, which serves primarily as security in connection with this real property lease.

In November 2011, the Company entered into a three year operating lease at Montclair State University
primarily for the use of a studio facility.

The rent expense incurred under these agreements aggregated to $13,369,000 and $11,185,000 for the years
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

For the years ended after June 30, 2013, the future minimum rentals under the various real estate lease
agreements are as follows:

2014 $ 12,580,000
2015 12,570,000
2016 12,476,000
2017 12,797,000
2018 12,875,000
Thereafter 55,482,000

$§ 118,780,000

In addition, these agreements include escalation provisions for real estate taxes and tenant improvements
based on changes in the assessed valuation of the property. Additional rent expense incurred under these
escalation clauses for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, amounted to $1,925,000 and $1,801,000,
respectively.

In 2011, the Company entered into sublease agreements with unrelated parties for its office space lease at 450
West 33" Street. Future minimum rental income from these subleases for the years ended after June 30, 2013
are as follows:

2014 $ 5,536,000
2015 5,536,000
2016 4,663,000
2017 4,773,000
2018 4,828,000
Thereafter 1,851,000

$ 27,187,000

B. The Company is party to various pending legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. The
Company's management and legal counsel have reviewed the probable outcome of these proceedings and
the costs and expenses reasonably expected to be incurred. While the outcome of the pending proceedings
cannot be predicted with certainty, based on its review, management believes that the liabilities that may result
are not likely to have a material effect on the Company’s liquidity, financial condition or change in net assets.
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NOTE 13—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

C. As a result of a Stipulation and Order of Settlement and Dismissal, the Company and the United States of
America entered into an agreement in 2010 to settle a Complaint made against the Company'’s subsidiary,
EBC. The Company agreed to a Compliance Plan (“the Plan”) designed to ensure that the conduct of EBC
and its employees will comply with applicable requirements for recipients of federal grant awards. Among
the requirements of the Plan is the submission of an Annual Compliance Report to the Office of the
Inspector General of the NSF (the “NSF OIG”) detailing the Company'’s efforts to comply with the terms of
the Plan. On October 11, 2013, the Company submitted the third Annual Compliance Report to the NSF
OIG. On November 15, 2013, the NSF OIG accepted the third Annual Compliance Report submitted by the
Company.

D. Approximately 8.5% and 9% of the Company's full-time equivalent employees were covered by collective
bargaining agreements as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The agreements, which cover various
periods, stipulate wage levels and differentials, participation in group health and dental plans and certain
agreements with regard to paid time off and leave policies, work hours and schedules, personnel policies
including grievance, discharge and discipline procedures. A new agreement is currently being negotiated.

E. The Company made significant modifications to its leased space at 450 West 33rd Street and is obligated to
restore the lease space to its original condition at the end of the lease term. An accrual for this potential
liability was made as of June 30, 2013 amounting to approximately $4,500,000.

F. The Company has no uncertain tax positions as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 in accordance with Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 740 (“Income Taxes”), which provides standards for establishing and
classifying any tax provisions for uncertain tax positions. The Company is no longer subject to federal or
state and local income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2010.

NOTE 14—DEFERRED REVENUE

In 2006, the Company entered into an agreement to lease certain of its unused spectrum (bandwidth) to an
unrelated third party. The Company recognizes this payment as revenue over 30 years. Included in deferred
revenue in the accompanying consolidated financial statements is $4,774,000 and $5,730,000 as of June 30, 2013
and 2012, respectively, related to the unamortized portion of this income. For the years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, approximately $956,000 and $1,125,000, respectively, was recognized in other income. The amount of
amortization for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was based on an assessment of the deferral made by an
outside consultant.

NOTE 15—FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

For financial instruments, including cash equivalents, certain investments, receivables, payables and debt, the
carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial assets carried at fair value as of June 30, 2013 are classified in the table in one of the three levels as
follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 2013
Investments:

Cash and money market funds $ 7,173,000 $ - $ - $ 7,173,000
U.S. Treasury Bills 3,089,000 17,409,000 - 20,498,000
Intemational equity funds 12,048,000 3,616,000 - 15,664,000
Fixed income funds 19,187,000 - - 19,187,000
TIPS 8,241,000 - - 8,241,000

Alternative investments - hedge
fund of funds - - 17,116,000 17,116,000
Natural resources trust - 3,154,000 - 3,154,000
Total Assets at Fair Value $ 49,738,000 $24179,000 $17,116,000 $_91.033.000
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NOTE 15—FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets carried at fair value as of June 30, 2012 are classified in the table in one of the three levels as
follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 2012
Investments:
Cash and money market funds $ 4,173,000 $ - $ - $ 4,173,000
U.S. Treasury Bills 2,352,000 13,797,000 - 16,149,000
International equity funds 10,643,000 3,469,000 - 14,112,000
Fixed income funds 36,090,000 - - 36,090,000
TIPS 8,653,000 - - 8,653,000
Altemative investments - hedge
fund of funds - - 6,491,000 6,491,000
Natural resources trust - 3,402,000 - 3,402,000
Total Assets at Fair Value $61,911,000 $20,668.000 $ 6.491.000 $ 89,070,000
The changes in assets measured at fair value for which the Company has classified Level 3 are as follows:
2013 2012
Balance at beginning of year $ 6,491,000 $ 6,440,000
Purchases 9,500,000 -
Redemptions and fees (59,000) (62,000)
Realized gain, interest and dividends 20,000 2,000
Unrealized gain 1,164,000 111,000
Balance at end of year $ 17,116,000 $ 6,491,000

NOTE 16—CENTRALCASTLLC

Centralcast LLC ("Centralcast") is a Delaware Limited Liability Company comprised of eight public broadcasting
corporations (the “Members”) that serve New York State through a broad range of noncommercial television
and radio programming. Each Member is an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the IRS Code.
WNET is one of the Members and has a 22% interest in Centralcast. Centralcast operates a joint master control
facility that enables the members to disseminate educational programming in a collaborative and efficient
manner. WNET pays service fees to Centralcast which are calculated on a standard basis in accordance with
the level of service required by WNET. The asset related to the Centralcast investment is recorded under
prepaid expenses and other assets and amounted to $375,000 and $232,000 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012
respectively.

NOTE 17—INVESTMENT IN V-ME, INC.

In September 2006, EBC entered into an agreement with V-Me, Inc.(*V-Me"), a national Spanish—language
television network. EBC agreed to contribute existing and future programming, assist in the promotion of the
network, and assist in securing the Spanish-language rights to programs. In exchange for these services, EBC
initially received a 20% equity investment in V-Me. On June 30, 2013, EBC transferred its ownership of V-Me to
WNET. The Company’s ownership interest has since been reduced to approximately 6% due to investment by
other shareholders. The Company did not record an asset related to the investment.

In addition, the Company provided certain production services and the use of facilities to V-Me, Inc. As of June 30,
2013 and 2012, the balance due from V-Me, Inc. amounted to approximately $158,000 and $179,000, respectively.
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NOTE 18—ENDOWMENT NET ASSETS

The Company adheres to the New York Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act ("NYPMIFA?).
NYPMIFA creates a rebuttable presumption of imprudence if an organization appropriates more than 7% of a
donor-restricted permanent endowment fund'’s fair value (averaged over a period of not less than the preceding
five years) in any year. In addition, in accordance with U.S. GAAP, any unappropriated earnings on endowment
funds that would otherwise be considered unrestricted by the donor should be reflected as temporarily restricted
until appropriated by the Board of Trustees.

The Company's Board of Directors, on advice of counsel, understood the state law as allowing the Company to
appropriate for expenditure or accumulate so much of an endowment fund as the Company determines is
prudent for the uses, benefits, purposes and duration for which the endowment fund is established, subject to
the intent of the donor as expressed in the gift instrument. Unless stated otherwise in the gift instrument, the
assets in an endowment fund shall be donor-restricted assets until appropriated for expenditure by the Board of
Directors. The policy for valuing the Company’s investments is described in Note 2C.

The Company’s endowment investment policy is to invest primarily in equities and fixed income based on an
asset allocation, approved by the Investment Committee, to satisfy its overall endowment financial and
investment objectives such as to preserve the principal, protect against inflation, receive stable returns and
achieve long-term growth. The Company relies on a total return strategy in which investment retums are
achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends).

Annual spending from the endowment fund is described in Note 2C.

The asset allocation plan provides for diversification of assets in an effort to maximize the investment return and
manage risk of the Company consistent with market conditions. The Company relies on a total return strategy in
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current
yield (interest and dividends).

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, institutions are required to disclose any deterioration of the fair value of assets
associated with donor-restricted endowment funds that fall below the level the donor requires the organization to
retain in perpetuity. The Company had not incurred such deficiencies in its endowment funds as of June 30, 2013
and 2012.

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Temporanly
Unrestricted Restricted
Appropnated Unappropriated
Investment Board Investment Program Pemanently
Operations Eamings Designated Eamings _Restricted Restricted Total 2013

Endowment net assets,

beginning of year $ - $ 4524000 $14,530000 $ 9042000 §$ 471000 $ 53,580,000 $__ 82,147,000
Contribution to endowments - - - - - 1,015,000 1,015,000
Investment activity:

Dividends and interest 50,000 - - 1,631,000 - - 1,681,000

Realized gain on investments (19,000) - - 953,000 - - 934,000

Unrealized gain on investments - - - 4,150,000 - - 4,150,000

Management fees - - - (236,000) - - {236,000)
Total investment activity 31,000 - - 6,498,000 - - 6,529,000
Board appropriated for expenditure - 4,255,000 - (4,255,000) - - -
Releases 4,524,000 (4,524,000) - - - - -
Used in operations (4,555,000) - - - - - (4.555,000)

Endowment net assets,
end of year § - § 4255000 $14.530000 §_ 11285000 & 471000 §$ 54595000 §__85136.000
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NOTE 18—ENDOWMENT NET ASSETS (Continued)

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restncted
Appropriated Unappropriated
Investment Board Investment Program Permanently
Operations Eamings Designated Eamings Restncted Restncted Total 2012

Endowment net assets,

beginning of year 3 - $ 4904000 $14530000 $ 11893000 $ 471000 $ 53,520,000 $ 85318.000
Contribution to endowments - - - - - 60,000 60,000
Investment activity:

Dividends and interest 27,000 - - 1,863,000 - - 1,890,000

Realized gain on investments 7,000 - - 1,638,000 - - 1,645,000

Unrealized gain on investments - - - (1,599,000) - - (1,599,000)

Management fees - - - (229,000) - - (229,000)
Total iInvestment activity 34,000 - - 1,673,000 - - 1,707,000
Board appropriated for expenditure - 4,524,000 - (4,524,000) - - -
Releases 4,904,000 (4,904,000) - - - - -
Used in operations {4,938,000) - - - - - (4,938,000)
Endowment net assets,

end of year 8 = 3 4524000 $14530000 $ 9042000 § 471000 §$ 53,580,000 § 82147000

Endowment net assets of $85,136,000 and $82,147,000 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are included
in the investments account in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

NOTE 19—CONCENTRATIONS

Cash and cash equivalents that potentially subject the Company to a concentration of credit risk include cash
accounts with banks that exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC") insurance limits. Interest
bearing accounts are insured up to $250,000 per depositor. Through December 31, 2012, noninterest bearing
accounts were fully insured. Beginning in 2013, noninterest bearing accounts are insured the same as interest
bearing accounts. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, there was approximately $16,440,000 and $16,137,000,
respectively of cash and cash equivalents held by banks that exceeded FDIC limits. Such excess includes
outstanding checks.

NOTE 20 — FOUNDATION FOR NEW JERSEY PUBLIC BROADCASTING, INC.

Effective September 28, 2012, the Foundation for New Jersey Public Broadcasting, Inc. (the “Foundation”), a
New Jersey non-profit corporation which had formerly raised money for the benefit of New Jersey's public
television station, merged with and into PMNJ. As of the effective date of the merger, the Foundation ceased to
have a separate corporate existence and PMNJ, as the surviving corporation, is now the formal successor to
the Foundation's assets and property.

NOTE 21 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated, for potential recognition and disclosure, events subsequent to the date of the
statement of consolidated financial position through December 3, 2013, the date the consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued. No events have occurred subsequent to the consolidated statement of
financial position date through December 3, 2013 that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the
consolidated financial statements.
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(With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2012)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Supporting Services

Management
Program and Total Total
Services Fundraising Administrative 2013 2012

Salanies and wages $ 26,263,000 $ 6,383,000 $ 8,319,000 3 40,965,000 §$ 42,431,000
Benefits and payroll taxes 5,487,000 1,328,000 1,662,000 8,477,000 8,749,000
Program production, acquisition

and consulting costs 35,684,000 2,658,000 813,000 39,155,000 55,583,000
Dues and PBS assessments 11,642,000 2,000 18,000 11,662,000 12,620,000
Rent 5,178,000 655,000 8,018,000 13,851,000 13,008,000
Utilities 449,000 81,000 572,000 1,102,000 967,000
Professional fundraising - 676,000 - 676,000 754,000
Accounting and legal fees 34,000 2,000 893,000 929,000 1,247,000
Supplies and premiums 158,000 2,121,000 40,000 2,319,000 2,559,000
Telephone and transmission 1,241,000 533,000 802,000 2,576,000 2,496,000
Postage, delivery and fulfillment 597,000 1,542,000 25,000 2,164,000 1,943,000
Insurance 285,000 70,000 208,000 563,000 906,000
Security and fire safety 187,000 46,000 80,000 313,000 290,000
General building maintenance 320,000 52,000 43,000 415,000 408,000
Equipment rentals, purchase and

maintenance 906,000 69,000 503,000 1,478,000 1,363,000
Printing and publications 375,000 778,000 31,000 1,184,000 1,340,000
Travel and business expense 1,999,000 338,000 117,000 2,454,000 2,791,000
Interest expense 2,000 - 300,000 302,000 444,000
Depreciation and amortization 3,581,000 374,000 1,377,000 5,332,000 5,374,000
Advertising and promotion 468,000 119,000 141,000 728,000 704,000
Bad debt expense - 27,000 452,000 479,000 588,000
Brokers commissions and fees - - - - -
Wnite off/loss on disposal of fixed assets - - 6,000 6,000 526,000
Miscellaneous expenses 25,000 466,000 76,000 567,000 1,358,000

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 94,881,000 $ 18,320,000 $ 24,496,000 $ 137,697,000 $ 158,449,000

See independent auditors’ report. -21-



WNET

(A New York Education Corporation Chartered by the Board of Regents)
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Salaries and wages

Benefits and payroll taxes

Program production, acquisition
and consulting costs

Dues and PBS assessments

Rent

Utilities

Professional fundraising

Accounting and legal fees

Supplies and premiums

Telephone and transmission

Postage, delivery and fulfillment

Insurance

Security and fire safety

General building maintenance

Equipment rentals, purchase and
maintenance

Printing and publications

Travel and business expense

Interest expense

Depreciation and amortization

Advertising and promotion

Bad debt expense

Brokers commuissions and fees

Write off/Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Miscellaneous expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Supporting Services

Management
Program and Total
Services Fundraising Administrative 2012
$ 28,131,000 6,038,000 $ 8,262,000 42,431,000
5,681,000 1,236,000 1,832,000 8,749,000
52,528,000 2,049,000 1,006,000 55,583,000
12,606,000 1,000 13,000 12,620,000
5,230,000 590,000 7,188,000 13,008,000
565,000 93,000 309,000 967,000
- 754,000 - 754,000
71,000 2,000 1,174,000 1,247,000
370,000 2,153,000 36,000 2,559,000
985,000 562,000 949,000 2,496,000
615,000 1,298,000 30,000 1,943,000
616,000 53,000 237,000 906,000
168,000 33,000 89,000 290,000
332,000 52,000 24,000 408,000
821,000 72,000 470,000 1,363,000
489,000 799,000 52,000 1,340,000
2,556,000 192,000 43,000 2,791,000
4,000 - 440,000 444,000
3,618,000 307,000 1,449,000 5,374,000
589,000 4,000 111,000 704,000
- 75,000 513,000 588,000
- - 526,000 526,000
471,000 405,000 482,000 1,358,000
$ 116,446,000 16,768,000 $ 25,235,000 $ 158,449,000

See independent auditors' report.
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